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. CENTRAL INTELLI.GENCE AGENCY

WASHINGTON 25, D. C.

14 ~une 19~9

~ough it had ~en esti~t~ t~t the anti-
co~Xst ~¢ies in ~ies~ elections held S~,
i$~$, wo~d receive about V~ ~r ce~t of ~e votes cast,
the practical~ co~ple~ ~et~ns froB ~t ci~, ~e ~¢i-
cow, st parties received ~7.8 ~r cent, the ~o~o~In~or~
(US~) Coexist Group received 20 ~r cent, and the ~o-Tito
Cow.st Group 2.2 ~r cent.

Forty-one of the sixty city council seats were
won by the pro-ItaliAn parties; that is, ~hose parties that
desired the return o£ Trieste and its territory to

Re~.r Admiral, USN .
Directol. Of Central Intelligence



CENTRAL .INTELLIGENCE AGENCY

WASHINGTON~25, D. C.

SUBJECT~ Appraisal o£ Communist-instigated anti-US demonstrations

in Brazil

Although the Con~unists in Brazil are making extensive plans
for demonstrations .against the Ker~tan visit and the meeting of US Am-
bassadors to be held in Rio de Janeiro during the week of 6 March~
Brazilian security forces Will be able to control any public disorders
the Communists may be ~able to foment in connection with these demon-
strations. The Rio police, who are taking preventive measures against
the Communist organizers# have alread~ arrested several Communists
after breaking up a scheduled demonstration befere the Brazilian For-
eign Office. The Communists may be able to stage some demonstrations
requiring violent suppression~ but the police will be able to restore
order before the demonstrations reach serious proportions. Moreover,
the several arm~. units in and immediately adjacent to the city of Rio
are entirely loyal to the government and c~n be. used in any amergency.

R. H. HILLE~KOETTER
~I~CToN OF CENTRAL INTELLIGENCK



Hr. iVe lEman8 Ns~el
Netnbergweg 57
7 Stuttgart 80 (ValhinRen)
Nest Cormany

Dear F~r. Nagel:

In reply to the questions in your letter o~8 December, ~ never eta’ted that "
the unknown objects were operatin~ under intelligent control. I didsay that
UFO’s should be investigated to tr~ to.~ind out 1~. the~ existed, and If so

.,~vhere they .ca~e ~rom, ’’

As ~er as I know, UF)’s are not o~ extra~errestrl~I orlstn for. �~e. ~ollog-
ing reasons:,                                                   .

(a) For at least 25 years, there have been no’- completely authenticated
sighting o~ such craft , nothing l/Ice, £or example, seeing a 747 on a
runway or in the air, by nu:bers o£ people.

(b) In a negative rer,se, also, fn 25 years there ~s been no definite
positive action by a UFO e~chor o£ ~r!e.dly or hostile nature. Surely~
if they exlst~ in a11 ChaC’Cimeone or m~re would have made �ontsct~
again either ~rlendly or hostile, with some part o~ the earth. The
lack o~ such actions ~ak~s me believe that Ue~’S ~rom outside the
earth have not as yet vlsit~d, here.

Neither the U.S. Air Force mar the Pentagon has issued any orders suppressln~
the truth about UFg’s.

I have never heard oE anyone who was in possession of UFW £rag~enes and as £ar
as I know no such UF~ £raR~,~en~s exist.

The concluslons as to the cxtra-terrestrlal origin o£ UPJ*s are, in my belle~,
~nsu~£1cient and unproven.

I know o£ no prominent scientist or o~icer advocating the extra-terrestrlal
origin o~ the UFr)’s in public.

For your 1n~or~atlon I am enclosing e copy o~ ~ letter received ~rom Dr. NLIILs
in Cali~ornla and myreply thereto. You may llke to get in touch vlth him.

Very truly yours,

R. [l. Hlllenl<oetter
Vice Admiral, U.S.N, (Ret.)



Fresno, Ca1££., 93726

.,~uld be vet~/ ~n~ore,~to<J ~o receive your book as �o the nar.ur¯ o£ ¢hese

but too much t.~mo ’.’.am gone by.

Very tz~xly yours.

Apt
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The foll~ing iaforma.tion received £rcm ~en~ Kon~ is coasidered
as reliable=

Ul. British reco~nltion of the. Chinese Con’~,unists on 8 January
i~50 produced t~ze following effect in Hong Eoag:

"a. The American dollar rose to 6.60 a~ ",’ealt~ Chinese
bo~sht dollars pr-eparatory to departing far Taiwan.

.b. ~an~ British naticmals applied for passage to
North China as s~on as" th~L- situation should be clarified. Space on
an unnamed Jardine &!atheson ship ~as sold eut for the first v~yage to
North China althouzh the d~parture date has not been set.

"c. Some B~itishers indicate an anti-&~erican attitude
but there ~s no-evidence of overt acts.

"2. In Nort~ China, the Chln~se Commumlst Party a~uounced neu’
travel regulations ~ ~ ~cember ~ the effect tlat ~ forei~rs
lea~ C~ m~t depot ~a S~~. F~ei~s i’r~ F~ip~, Tients~
~d the ~,;~, a~t ~avel over~ to S~g~ ~ ~k thee.

"3. T~ Chinese Nationalists, banks on ~ January paid their
staffs four months sala~ in lieu ~ notice. Most accounts of these
banks transferred to T,:~i~n and Ne~ York.

i’~. The ~ritish Aa~my on 3 January set up 6 to 9 anti-aircraft
£~ans at Kaitak Airfield, giving t~,e field full coverage.,

R. H. HILL~IKO~.~’rE~
:~ear Admiral, T.T~H

Director of Central Intelli~ence

i
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in a recent Chica;o broadcast, Harv’~rd astronomer Do~ld
¯ Mcnzel -- an often violent attacker of UFO witnesses and be-
lievers--made the followin~ claim in regard ~. Vice. Adm.
R. H. Hllle~octter,.former NICAP B~rd Mem~r:

"Adm. Hille~oetter has read my ~k [The World of ~yi~
S~ucers] and has told me ho fully accept~ all my expla~tl~s."
~r. Mcnzcl rejects all ~sitive evl~nce, tnsi~s UFOs are o~y
~ral phenomena, errors ~n identtfyi~ p~nes, meteors, etc.)

Dr. blenzel’s statement ap~rently ~s an attempt to discredit
~CAP, after an Affiliate member quoted Hille~oetter as holdi~
a contrary view.

The first time Menzel made ~is claim, as far as we ~ow,
on Boston station WEEI, late in 1~64. Adm. Hille~tter
nlrea~ on record, In a si~ed Board Mem~r ~tement,
stressl~ ~e UFO problem’s im~rtance, the ri~ ~ acciden~l
~r from mist~en identification of UFOs as a secr~ ~et
attack, and the urgent need for a Congressio~l ~vestig~ti~.
Since a complete rever~l of ~ese views ~s tncr~ible, ~CAP’s
director, a Naval Academy classmate and ~rso~l friend of
Hille~oetter, w~te him a~ut the Menzel claim.

Adm. Hille~oetter’s reply Is repr~ucedbel~. ~he reference
to MaJ. Hart ~s not concerned with Menzel.)

~tto~l lnw~tigat~ons ~ttee

~ashl~t~ 6, D. C.

I s~l~tze for ~ delay in ~ns~rl~ ~ lett~ of Dec~ 13~
but for ~rt of t~ ti~ over t~ ~lfdeys I wee W In

I tht~ ~ were mltinfor~d e~t s~ of the ~lngs ~ ~nt~,
First. Ss far as I ca. re~, I nev~ tslk~ to ~Jor ~rt ~r~

him Sf he milk~ ~n the doo~.

I se~ ~. Menzel st a d~nner in Pece~e~ ~t ether t~n
~ [~ning - ~rry ~r~s~s" there ~es ~ �on~sition e~

He did send ~ I copy of his ~k for ~ich I t~ him ~t ~k

Pleese ~ke ~ apologies again for bei~ sO 1o~ in onswrl~

In spite of Dr. Menzel~s ~f~ded at~ck8 on ~C~, we
not believe he ~d deliberately m~e ¯ ~lse c~fm a~t Adm.
Hflle~oetter. Since he ~s on a quiz p~ra~, ~r~lng unde~
some ~ress, we.c~d o~y assume he ~d co,used Hflle~oe~er
~th ~me one else.

Fo~ ~ts Feason, we Fefnined fFom ~bllshin; the letter.
since Menzel is now repeatin~ this claim, we ~ve no choice.

~r~ his five years on ~e Board, ~. Hflle~oetter stronRly
~p~ed ;11 ~C~ ~licies, including our views against
~rranted secFecy. When he left the ~oard, there was no
feeh~, as Dr. Menzel ~s implied. In a letter to the director,
he s~id he ~elt we ~d Fenched ~ s~lemate. He ~ld he ~e~ the
UFOs were not secret U.S. or Soviet devices, a~d ff they were
e~r~terrestrial we could do nothing but wa~t for them to act.

Though we did not acre~ there was a s~le~ate, we did not
ar~e the ~lnt. A ~Jorf~ of our Board, advisers and mem~rs
are convinced a ~rent deal can be done to prove UFO reality and
help pre~re ~e public for,w~tever develops, we belleve.~e

eventsl of this past year bays proved this ~lcyt correct.l .
Note to members: If y~hearthe~ve ~l~lm broadcast
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Landing Probed by
NICAP, AF

¯ A curious landing report, in New York state on Aug. lg, has
been thorougldy checked by NICAP, rote police and a five-man AF
team. This sighting, which occurred on the William Butcher
dairy farm near Cherry Creek, N.Y., involved three members of
the Butcher family and a fourth witness. Here is their report:

At 8:20 p.m., Harold Butcher, 16, w~s operating a milking
machine in a dairy barn housing 17 cows. A portable radio on
the wall was turned to a newscast, when a sudden static-like
interference drowned it out. Then the tractor which ran the
milking machine abruptly stopped. A moment later, a Holstein
bull secured outside began to bellow and pull at a steel bar to
wh/ch it was Chained.

Young Butcher ran to a window and saw a large elliptical
object nearing the ground, a fourth of a mile a~ay. A reddish
vapor could be seen underneath, and he heard a steady beep-beep
sound.. ,The., UFO was on the ground only a few seconds, then it
shot straight up, disappearing in low clouds.

When the other witnesses came .out, after Harold Butcher
phoned the house, they noted a strange odor, also a greenish glow
in the clouds where the UFO had._.v~.~n.lshed. Meant/me, it was
found that the bull had bent the steel bar in his efforts to get
loose.

Half an hour later, when the strange craft reappeared, circling
the area, Mrs. Butcher called State police. Two troopers investi-
gated, notified the AF. Next day, Capt. James Dorsey, Operations
Officer, 4621st AF Grou~" arrived with four AF technicians.
When they examined the ground, an odd purplish liquid substance
was discovered at several places.. Small unexplained marks, two
inches wide and two inches apart, also were found, alon~ with
patches of singed grass and folia~e.

After the AF team left, NICAP member Jeffrey Gow obtained
samples of the purplish substance and singed foliage, and sam-
ples were studied by the Kawecki Chemical Co., whose president
is a NICAP adviser. Spectrographic analysis showed the main
elements of the liquid to be aluminum, iron and silicon. Some
phosphorous .was found in the weed samples, which the analyst
said might cause a phosphine smell, explaining the odd odor.

On the night following the Cherry Creek incident, State Trooper
Hichard Ward, a few miles from this area,watched an object with
eight circular lights in line flying twice an fast a a Jet. It emitted
a faint, unfamiliar purring sound.

Dr. Fred C. Fair and John Maxwell, of NICAP New York Sub:
committee No. 2, carefully checked the Cherry Creek site and
q~estioned the witnesses. On the basis of present evidence, they
believe,the report is genuine. Dr. Fair has confirmed that two
state troopers who investigated also seem to be convinced.

We wish we could thank by name all the NICAP investigators,
sub-committees and affiliates and other members who have
worked so hard to investigate the many recent sightings. Without
their aid, we would not have been able to check many important
reports.

We regret we cannot personally thank all of you who hav~ sent
in newspaper clips on sightin~s..We appreciate this help very
much, and it will be especially important now since we have had
to cancel our Clipping service. (During the recent months, we had
expensive overcharges when hundreds of clips on the same sight-
in~s were sent to us by the clipping bureau.)

When you send in clippings, please give the name of the news-
paper and date of publication, either in the margin or on a sepa-
rate card or slip.

Because of the flood of recent sightings it t~ok extra timeto
select and write up the details for this issue, causing a ten-day
delay in going to press. We are starting on Vol. III/5 at once
and will do our best to mall it well before Thanksgiving.

ately and quote Adm. Hillenkoetter’s January 8th letter to get the
facts on record.
-We do not have space here for the admlral’s signed statement

cited in paragraph four, but if it becomes necessary we will print
it in a later issue.



HEOEMAN- HARRIS COMPAIVY
INC.

]:~UILDINO CONSTRUCTION

80 ROCKZFE*.LZR PLAZA

NEw YORK 20, N.Y.

.~eptember 19, 1963~~

Doctor Donald H. Menzel
Harvard College Observatox~/
Cambridge 28, Massachusetts

Dear Dr. Menzel:

Please accept my deepest apologies for the delay in answering your
letter of 2 August, as well as the acknowledgment of the receipt of
your book. I was away for some time during the sunmer and the
Navy Department forwarded your letter to my home where I was a
long time receiving it.

Thank you very much for your book. To my mind, it was very well
done and I enjoyed it and found it of great inte~est. I should say
that you have effectively put to rest all surmises about flying
saucers being from "outer space". You have done a .thorough and
praiseworthy job.

As I told you at the last "Ends of the Earth", I resigned from
NICAP about 20 months ago feeling that it had degenerated from an
organization honestly trying to find out something definite about
possible unknowns, into a body bickering about personalities.
The Air Force, too, could have helped by not being so secretive.

At all events, you have done a fine Job and I am very grateful you
were so kind as to send me your book.

Again with thanks and the hope of seeing you at the next "Ends of
the Earth", please believe me

Most cordially,

R. H. Htllenkoetter
Vice Admiral, U.S.N. (Ret.)
Vice President

AMP
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ANOTHER      INDICATION THAT     THE
DOCUMENT" IS A COUNTERFEIT...

IT
HILLENKOETTER AS

Oct. 9, 1987

"MJ-12 HILLENKOETTER BRIEFING

ERRONEOUSLY     REFERS     TO ADM.
"ROSCOE H..."    IN TWO PLACES.    AUTHENTIC DOCU-

MENTS SHOW THAT HE USED HIS INITIALS-~.H-,    NOT HIS
FIRST NAME.(Possibly he was not too fond of the name "Roscoe.")

Authentic Hillenkoetter memoranda to the White House written
while he was Director of Central    Intelligence (1947-1950)
(obtained from the Truman Library, thanks to its director,
Benedict K. Zobrist), show all were signed as follows:

R.H. Hillenkoetter
Rear Admiral, USN
Director of Central Intelligence

These include-the-following:

(i) Once Top Secret Memorandum
date of "6 Aug. 1948."

for the. President, bearing

(2) Memorandum of "14 June 1949"

(3) Once Confidential Memorandum, dated "9 Januaryt950-

(4) Once Secret Memorandum, dated "3 March 1950"

NOTE that none of the single-digit dates used a zero-prefix, nor
did any use a---~--"unnecessary comma" after the month, as is found
on the "MJ-12 Hillenkoetter ~apers" released by William L. Moore
Moore uses this peculiar "MJ-12 style" in his own letters.

When Hillenkoetter retired from the Navy in 1957, and subse-
quently joined the Board of NICAP, he was listed as "R.H.
Hillenkoetter,- NOT as Roscoe H. Hillenkoetter.    An articl~--~
UFOs published in the Nov. 18, 1957, edition of The Washington
Daily News, based on an~ interview, identifies him as: "Admiral
R.H. Hillenkoetter.,,    When he was quoted as a NICAP spokesman in
an article on UFOs in the Feb. 28, 1960, edition of The New York
Times, he was identified as "Vice Admiral R.H. H-~lenkoetter
(Ret.)...- When a similar statement on UFOs was published in the
Congressional Record of Sept. 2, 1960, he was referred to as
"Vice Adm. R.H____~. Hillenkoetter...-

Clearly the "MJ-12 briefing document" was not written by
Hillenkoetter or typed by his secretary, who would certainly have
known that he used "R.H " not "Roscoe."

Moore.claims that his more than two years of research into
the validity of the MJ-12 papers turned up "absolutely nothing"

¯ to question their authenticity. "Absolutely nothing"?????
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THE ADMIRAL AND THE UFOS

The Strange Case of Admiral Hillenkoetter

by                ;~
Bruce S. Maccabee

Fund for UFO Research

~ B. Maccabee 1987

A MAN OF STATURE

Admiral Roscoe Hillenkoetter was an exemplary military
officer. During WWII he was the Officer in Charge of
Intelligence on the staff of the Commander in Chief, Pacific
Ocean Area. Later was the Commanding Officer of the.USS
Dixie and Director of Planning and Control in the Bureau of
Naval Personnel. He was awarded the. Legion of Merit for
work with Personnel and, after the Japanese surrender aboard
the USS Misso~mi he assumed command of that~ ship. Later he
was a Naval Attache in France. In the spring of 1947 he was
called to special duty in Washington,. D.C. under the
Secretary of the Navy. On May 1, 1947 he was named Director
of the Central Intel~gence Group which became the Central
Intelligence Agency as a result of a presidential~directive
in September, 1947. Hillenkoetter was, therefore the first
CIA director. He held that position until November, 1950.
Later he was assigned to duty in the Navy Inspector General~
Office and became the Inspector General in August 1956. He
retired from the Navy in June, 1957 with many medals and
honors for his Navy work including the Bronze Star Medal,
the Purple Heart, the WWII Victory Medal; the Korean Service
Medal, the United Nations Service Medal and the Presidential
Unit Citation Badge.

Evidently Admirai Hillenkoetter was a very capable, well
respected .individual who could be trusted with the innermost
secrets of the United States Government. He. was a person
who could speak with authority On a number of defense and
intelligence related issues. For that reason the
credibility of UFO research was given a boost he joined the
Board of Governors of the National Investigations Committee
on Aerial Phenomena, NICAP, in 1957.

Several years later Hillenkoetter went even further in
his support of UFO research. In 1960 he made the following
public statement: "Unknown objects are operating under
intelligent control... It is imperative that we learn.where
UFOs come from and what their purpose is." He went on to
charge the Air Force with hiding the facts by ~using
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regulations to silence its personnel. Finally, he stated
his belief that it was time to end the government secrecy
and to reveal "the truth...in open Congressional hearings."

Now, why would a man of his stature and authority, a
Navy admiral and former CIA director, join a UFO
organization?    Didn’t he know that UFO "believers" are
"kooks and nuts?" And why would he even go so far as to
vocally support one of NICAP’s goals, the release of
information withheld by the government? Certainly he was
aware that the Air Force repeatedly stated that it was
keeping no secrets about flying saucers.

His UFO activities make no sense in the context of the
o~ficial UFO policy o~ the government ~or which he had
worked for many years. Yet, his actions do make sense if he
wanted to convince the American public that flying saucers
were real without revealing government secrets about the
saucers.

But, this couldn’t be possibly be true, could it? UFOs
are all nonsense, right? Perhaps he was just another "UFO
nut" a~ter all? Or could it be that he really did kno~ that
flying sauce~s a~e real?

Recently uncovered information about UFO-related
government and Air Force activities suggest that
Hillenkoetter may well have known that ~lying saucers are
real.

REWRITING HISTORY

Several years ago I wrote a paper entitled "Revised UFO
History." ("Revised UFO History" can be obtained ~rom the
Fund for UFO Research, Box 277, Mr. Rainier, MD 20712 in
return for a donation of $5.00~ the paper was reviewed in
FATE, Oct. 1985.)    In that paper I pointed out that the
results o÷ research into the so-called Roswell Incident
indicate that the early history o~ the Air Force
investigation of ÷lying saucer reports should be rewritten.
I also pointed out that the results o~ the Roswell research
~orce us to reevaluate the controversy over whether or not
the US government has maintained a highly secret
investigative effort unrelated to Project Blue Book. The
"Roswell Incident" (the title o~ the book by Bill Moore and
Charles Berlitz, reviewed in the Feb. 1981 FATE) was the
retrieval ~rom the desert near Roswell o~ a large amount o~
strange material which was subsequently secretly shipped to
Wright Patterson Air Force Base (which was called Wright
Field in 1947) for analysis. The ~act o~ the shipment to
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WPAFB was con÷irmed in a document which was released to me
by the FBI in 1977 as a result of a Freedom of Information
Act request. Bill Moore and Stanton Friedman have located
about half a dozen living witnesses who actually handled the
material and roughly 85 more individuals who were directly
or peripherally involved with the case. The story put
together from the witness testimony is very convincing. It
appears that some unusual material that fell on the ÷arm
after some object exploded was retrieved by the Army Air
Force and then the retrieval.was covered up. (See "Crashed
Saucers: Evidence in Search of Proof" and the cited
references by William L. Moore in the MUFON Symposium
Proceedings~ 1985; see also "Phil Klass and the Roswell
incident: the skeptics deceived in th~ International UFO
Reporter~ July/August 1986.)

The discovery of the material by farmer Brazel and the
initial retrieval of material by Major (subsequently
Colonel; now deceased) Jesse Marcel resulted in a press
release which began with the following statement: "The many
rumors regarding the flying disc became a reality yesterday
when the intelligence office of the 509th Bomb Group of the
Eighth Air Force, Roswell Army Field~ was fortunate enough
to gain possession of a disc through the co--operation of one
Of the local ranchers and the Sheriff’s office of Chaves
County." (San Francisco Chronicler 7-9-47).    Within a day
after this story was released by the Roswell informltion
officer~ the Army Air Force, at the direction of General
Ramey~ held a press conference and announced that the object
was a weather balloon and radar reflector, a story that was
patently ridiculous considering that such devices are common
in the area and certainly would have been recognized as such
by the intelligence officer~ Major Marcel. Nevertheless,
the Air Force "explanation" was accepted by the press and
the general public because no one outside the Air Force had
access to any of the material and thus could not rebut the
official statement and because the first hand civilian
witnesses (in particular farmer Brazel) were apparently told
to avoid discussing the incident. The Roswell story "slept"
until 1979 when Friedman and Moore tracked down Marcel and
obtained his first-hand testimony.

The "Revised UFO History" proceeds from the assumption
that~ as a result of the Roswell retrieval and numerous
military sightings during the 1947 flap~.a very small group
of top military intelligence officials knew by the middle of
July~ 1947, that "flying saucers" were real and that they
were not-manmade. What they did not know was the purpose or
"modus operandi" of the saucer pilots.

The assumption that the very top military intelligence
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o~ficials in the Air Force knew as soon as the middle of
July~ 1947 that saucers were real can explain a statement by
an Air Force investigator, evidently not a member o~ the
"in-group," (but perhaps one of Schulgen’s intelligence
officers) who wrote the following statement as part of an
overview of the flying saucer situation sometime in late
July or early August, 1947:

"Lack of topside inquiries, when compared to the
prompt and demanding inquiries that have originate topside
upon former events, gives more than ordinary weight to the
possibility that this is a domestic project about which
the President, etc., know."

The speculation that flying saucers were a "domestic
project" was incorrect, but the speculation that the
"President, etc., know" may well have been correct.

It seems certain that the top generals, such as Lt.
General Nathan Twining, the head o~ the Air Materiel Command
(AMC) at Wright Field (later called Wright-Patterson AFB)

where the Roswell material was shipped, and Genera~~~
Vandenburg, the Chief of Staff of the Air Force,~ew that
the saucers were real and not man-made. A few other very
top government scientists and Air Force o~ficials would also
have known.

THE COVER UP BEGINS?

Brig. Gen. George F. Schulgen was the Assistant Chie÷
o~ the Intelligence Requirements Branch of the Army Air
Corps intelligence (AC/AS-2). His job was to ~ormulate
information collection requirements so that the Air Force
intelligence agents would know what types o~ information to
collect. Evidently when Air Force pilots began seeing
saucers he decided (or he was directed) to ~ormulate
requirements for an intelligence collection e~ort. In
order to ÷ormulate those requirements he had to know some
characteristics of the saucers. He began collecting saucer
reports early in July.

He contacted the FBI on July 10 and asked ~or help. He
wanted the FBI to interview civilians who reported the early
saucers in order to ascertain whether or not the reports
could be the result of a desire ~or publicity or ~or
political reasons (e.g.~ subversive activities). Schulgen
told the FBI that the Air Force was "utilizing all their
scientists to ascertain whether or not such a phenomenon
could, in fact, occur." He promised to supply the FBI with
information gathered by the Air Force in return for FBI
help. (Only because o~ Schulgen’s contact with the FBI are
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we able to piece this early history fogether. The.Air Force
Blue Book file has no information on this phase of the early
history.)

Over the months of July and August Schulgen’s
intelligence officers were successful in accumulating a
sizeable body of testimonial evidence in spite of the lack
of "prompt and demanding inquiries" from Schulgen’s
superiors. From this evidence Schulgens officers derived
some basic characteristics of saucers.    Brig. Gen. Schulgen
then submitted this information to the Air Materiel Command
for a technical evaluation. At the head of the AMC was Lt.
Gen. Twining, a man who outranked Schulgen.

On September 23, 1947 Twining wrote a letter
Schulgen indicating that he was iresponding to Schulgen’s
request. The letter provided an.opinion of the testimonial
information which had been supplied by Schulgen, According
to Twining’s letter the testimonial information
("interrogation report data") were studied by personnel
several AMC aircraft laboratories and these personnel, using
(only) Schulgen’s information, concluded that the
"phenomenon is something real and not visionary or
fictitious."    (This statement is. remarkably similar to the~

conclusion formulated about two months earlier by Schulgen’s
officers that "this flying saucer situation is not a!l
imaginary or seeing too much in some natural phenomenon.
Something is really flying around.")

Although Twining’s letter listed a number of saucer
characteristics and went on to recommend that a special
pro3ect be set up to study the situation, it also stated
that there was a "lack of physical evidence in the shape
crash recovered exhibits which would undeniably prove the
existence of these objects."

Skeptics of the Roswell incident have used this
statement to discredit the incident by pointing out that
Twining should have known about any physical evidence if the
material had been shipped to Wright Field for analysis by
the AMC. Therefore, they argue, since his letter said there
was no physical evidence, there must have been none and the
Roswell crash is fiction.                                        ..

However, as I Pointed out in "Revised UFO History" it
was not necessary for Twining toinform General Schulgen in
a letter classified at only the "Secret" level o÷ the ~
existence of. any hard evidence. It was not necessary
because Schulgen had asked Twining for.an opinion based onl~
on the information that had been supplied by ~e~eral
Sch~Igen. Since Schulgen had not supplied any physical
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evidence, the people who formulated the opinion using only
Schulgen’s information (various experts at the AMC
laboratories) concluded that there was none. Assuming that
Twining did know of the Roswell crash, he may well have
decided (or he may have been directed) to keep this fact
from the people who evaluated the testimonial information
supplied by Schulgen. In other words, as I suggested in
"Revised UFO History," Twining may have covered up the fact
of the crash in order to minimize the number of people who
were aware of it. Only people with a specific need-to-know
would have been informed of the crash. The AMC experts did
not have a need-to-know because they succeeded in correctly
evaluating the situation (flying saucers are real and a
project should be set up) ~sing only Schalgen’s testimonial
evidence. Similarly, Schulgen did not have a need-to-know
for the hard evidence because he was made aware of the
correct evaluation by Twining’s letter.

This evaluation was sufficient to justify an
intelligence collection effort by General Schulgen. During
October his officers formulated the collection requirements
and on October 30, 1947 he began to distribute a memorandum
entitled "Intelligence Requirements on Flying Saucer Type
Aircraft." The memorandum stated that "an alleged "Flying
Saucer" type aircraft" had been sighted in "widely scattered
places, such as the United States, Alaska, Canada, Hungary,
the Island of Guam and Japan" and had been reported by "many
competent observers including USAF rated officers." The
memorandum went on to list about a dozen characteristics of
saucers including the "ability to quickly disappear by high
speed or by complete disintegmation." (my emphasis) It
stated that the first sightings in the USA "were reported
around the middle of May" (1947) and that the last reported
sightings "took place in Toronto, Canada, 14 September."
Then the memorandum offered an opinion as to the origin of
the objects: "While there remains the possibility of Russian
manufacture.., it is the considered opinion of some elements
that the object may in fact represent an i~templa~etamy
cmaft of some kind." (my emphasis) The memorandum provided
a list of items of special interest (information
"requirements") that should be part of the intelligence
collection effort.

Thus, assuming that the Roswell Incident did provide
hard evidence, it appears that the cover-up really got
underway when General Twining refused to mention in the
letter to Schulgen that a crash had occurred and that there
was, in-fact, physical evidence of flying saucers.
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A PERSON WITH A NEED-TO-KNOW

Assuming that the Roswell Incident supplied physical,
and perhaps biological, proof that flying saucers were of a
non-human origin, then the government and military officials
at the top levels would have been informed immediately. It
would have been evident to them thatthey were facing an
unknown situation of extreme importance that they didn’t
understand~and couldn’t control. Until they did understand
it they would want to keep the physical proof Secret. In
order to maintain the secrecy a special group of highly
trustworth individuals would have been instructed to
coordinate the analysis of the hard evidence and to study
its implications for science, military technology and
humanity in general. Furthermore the special group would
have been instructed to set up a secrecy barrier that would
control access to the hard evidence and even access to the
fact of the existence of the evidence. (Remember that this
was only two years after the end of the most technology-
oriented war ever fought. People were used to extreme
secrecy.in military matters.) Only those few people who had
special qualifications and a need-to-know would be
authorized by the secret group to have a~ess to the hard
evidence.

One person with a definite need-to-know was the’ head of

the ~ivilian agency that monitors military, political and
scientific developments in countries hostile tO the USA.
This person would have been responsible for providing the
special group with any information which might indicate that
another country had also been fortunate enough to have a
flying saucer "land in its lap." This person would have
been the head of the CIA... and we all know who that was in
1947 (~e~

THE DIRTY DOZEN?

Well, you ask, is there any evidence that there
actually was a special group controlling access to the
physical evidence of flying saucers?

For roughly thirty years there was nothing other than
flimsy rumors. However, in the last ten years information¯

has become available from a number of sources which.
indicates that there was such a group. It appears that the
group was designated by its special access code name MO-12.

The term MO-12 first turned up in a document allegedly
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from the headquarters of the Air Force Office of Special
Investigations (AFOSI) dated November 17, 1980.    (However,
AFOSI headquarters claims it is not the source of the
document.) This document is a response to a request from

the District 17 office of the AFOSI at Kirtland, AFB in
Albuquerque, NM. Evidently the Kirtland AFOSI had asked
headquarters to analyze some photos and film taken by a
civilian who lives near Kirtland AFB and had also asked for
a clarification of the policy regarding UFO sightings and
what the Air Force was doing about them. The response from
headquarters, besides indicating that at least some of the
film images were unidentified, contains the following
provocative statement: "The official US government policy
and results of Project Aquarius is still classified Top
Secret with no dissemination outside official intelligence
channels and with restricted access to ’MJ Twelve’."

The validity of portions of this document are in
question because some of the information is known to be
incorrect. However, I confirmed the existence of Project
Aquarius. A report of the project was essentially completed
in 1976. I was not told of the subject matter, but I was
told it was so highly classified that it probably would
never be released. (Note: the recent admission by the
National Security Agency that there presently is a Project
Aquarius refers to a "new" Project Aquarius, not to the one
which was completed roughly ten years ago.)

Of even greater importance in establishing the ~
existence MJ-12 is a document that was found in the files of
the National Archives by Bill Moore. The document dated
July 14, 1954 is a formerly Top Secret memorandum to General
Twining (!). The subject of the memorandum is "NSC/MJ-12
Special Studies Project."    The memorandum says that "the
President" (i.e., Eisenhower) "has decided that the MJ-12
SSP briefing should take place during the already scheduled
meeting of July 16, rather than following it as previously
intended." The memo goes on to say that Twining should make
plans to attend. The memo was signed by Robert Cutler, the
Special Assistant to the F’resident. (Note: it is presumed
that NSC stands for the National Security Council. However
a cursory search of NSC records has failed to turn up
anything on MJ-12. According to National Archive records
there was no NSC meeting on July 16, 1954.)

The existence of MJ-12 was independently confirmed by
researcher Lee Graham. Graham saw a Top Secret
document written in the fall of 1952 for presentation zo the
"president elect" (i.e., Eisenhower) which referred to MJ-12
and to an ongoing study of crashed saucers by a small group
of high level government and military people. Although
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Graham was not allowed to Copy the document he did write
down the list of the twelve individuals who were members of
the group. Two of the people onthe list were General
Nathan Twining and General Hoyt Vandenburg. Another
important name on the list is Vannevar Bush. That he should
be listed is not surprising since he was the chief science
consultant to the President.

Independent evidence that Bush was involved with a
special group studying saucers comes from a completely
different source, a formerly Top Secret memorandum that was
released, perhaps by accident, by the Canadian government in
the late 1970’s. The memorandum, written~ by Wilburt B.
Smith on Nov.     ~°I~. 1950, states that "flying saucers exist"
and that the subject is "the most highly classified subject
in the United States Government, rating even higher.than.the
H-bomb." Although~oit does not name the special group
working on the saucers it says that a "concentrated effort
is being made by a Small group headed~by Doctor Vannevar
Bush. "

Further evidence that there was a .special grouP~ working
on hardware is based on thetestimony of the late Dr. Rober~
Sarbacher who apparently was the original source for the~

information in the Smith memorandum~ sarbacher was an
expert in missile guidance and he worked on numerous"defense
projects in the late 1940’s and early 1950~s." During-a
phone interview several years ago he told me that he had
been invited to visit Wright Patterson AFB. to iview’the~

remains of a crashed saucer and occupants, but that he hadn’t
been able to go. He further~told me that some~of his
acquaintances~ who also worked on top secre~ defense
projects, did go. In a 1983 letter that responded to
questions posed by another researcher, William Steinman,
Sarbacher stated that all he could remembe~ (about 30 years
later!) was that "certain materials reported to have come
from flying saucer crashes were extremely light and very
tough." He also remembered that the "people operating these
machines were also very light weight, sufficient to
withstand the tremendous acceleration and deceleration
associated with their machinery." Sarbacher said that he
got the impression from discussions with the m~d who saw the
remains that the aliens were "constructed like certain
insects we have observed~on earth." Sarbacher~,also told
this to me when I talkedto him in 1.985. ~Sarbacher went~on
to say that he believed the Vannevar Bush was~involve~ with
a group of people studying the saucers a~d ~hat he thought
that Dr. Robert Oppenheimer wasalso.involved". .(However,~

Oppenheimer’s name was not on the MO-12.1ist seen by
Graham.)
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Evidence that a small group of people has continued to
work on flying saucer hardware has come to me in the form of
testimony by a source who was formely in a well connected
position at Wright Patterson AFB. According to this source
he first heard about ongoing work in the middle sixties, and

that he heard more about it in the middle seventies. He was
not aware of the exact nature of the work, but he did say it

involved the analysis of alien bodies.

Other names on the MJ-12 list include well known
scientists and government officials including James
Forrestal who, in September 1947, became the first Secretary
of Defense, and Sidney Souers. Souers organized the Central
Intelligence Group which became the CIA. He "retired" when

the name was changed and Hillenkoetter took over.
Subsequently, on Sept 26, 1947, he became the first
executive secretary of the National Security Council (which

had its first meeting on that same day).

One name on the list comes as a complete surprise:
Donald Menzel, the well known and widely respected Harvard
astrophysicist. At the time of the formation of the special

group (presumably in the fall of 1947) Menzel had made no
public statements regarding flying saucers and, in fact, he
did not become a "public skeptic" until the middle of 1952
after LIFE magazine published a ma~or story supporting the
existence of flying saucers. This was also the time of the
great 1952 UFO flap when the number of sightings per month
was at an all time high and pressure on the Air For~e to

release information was at its peak.

If it is correct that he was part of MJ-12, then his
ludicrous explanations of well reported UFO sightings become
understandable (see "Still in Default," a paper in the 1986
MUFON Symposium proceedings, for examples of Menzel’s
erroneous and perhaps even fraudulent explanations of early
sightings.~ the paper is also available from the Fund for UFO
Research in return ~or a donation o~ $15.00). Perhaps
Menzel-~s debunking was a form of "damage control:" in order

to preserve the secret that the US government had one (or
more) crashed disc(s) he used his scientific authority to

"debunk" all sightings to make it look as if there was no
s(:ientific basis for them and thereby make ridiculous the
idea that there might be crashed saucers.

At any rate, there is no doubt thatMenzel’s debunking
had an great effect. Menzel’s explanations (and those of
other skeptics), when combined with official Air Force
denials, were very effective in damping any interest in the
phenomenon within the scientific community. As a result,

scientists and the news media were led to attribute all
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sightings to hoaxes or mistakes and thus to generally ignore
them. The rejection of sighting reports applied even more
strongly to any stories that leaked out about crashed discs.
Thus the "ultimate secret" acquired the "ultimate
protection:" no one spends a lot of time looking for that
which he believes does’not exist.

So, what does this all haveto do with Admiral
Hillenkoetter knowing that saucers were real? A Iot~ As
head of the CIA he would have had a need-to-know for
information related to an actual crash so that he could
determine the requirements for collecting intelligence about
any crashes in any other countries. .But there.is even more
concrete evidence that Hillenkoetter knew.- You see, at the
top of the MO-12 list was none other than Roscoe~

Hil I enkoettem.

But, if he was part of MJ-12, a"group that Was "sworn
to secrecy" about the crashed disc(s), then why did he .~oin
NICAF’ in 1957, only about a. month after retiring~{rom active
duty? Of course, I can’tprovide a conclusive ~ansWer.~t~o
that question. However, I speculate that~it was because (a)
he knew for afaot that flying sauoers~were real and piloted
by intelligent entities and (b) he did notlagree~with~the
policy of continually keeping UFO information from ~e
general public and the scientific community. I think that
he wanted to use his reputation and "voice.of authority’~’ to
alert the scientific community to the.~reali.ty of the
saucers. I think that, perhaps.because the MO-12 group had
not been abide to answer the.questions he posed ~in 1960
(where do they come from and why are they here?), he felt.
that a large scale effort by many scientists was necessary
to answer these.questions.    Of course, he could not alert
the scientists and the public by revealing the top secret
information about the crashed disc(s) by himself. To do
that he would have had to convince all of the MJ-12 members
and also the top advisors to.thelPresident ~(Eisenhower, at
the time Hillenkoetter joined NICAP) that the information
should be declassified. Evidently he was not aUle to do
this so, I believe, instead he deci.ded to .offer his public
support for the endeavors of a highly credible civilian UFO
research group and thus he joined the.Board of~Governors of~

The fact that Hillenkoetter and several other Navy
Admirals (Delmer Fahrney, a guided missile expert .and
Herbert Knowles) were members of the~NICAP Board-.of
Governors gave NICAP a level o~ credibility unmatched by by
any other pro-UFO organization since then. These menand
and the other well-respected members of the NICAP board
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allowed their names to be entered into the Congressional
Record as being in favor of releasing the secret information
to the general public (see the Congressional Record, Sept.

l~6~-lq pg A6714~. Hillenkoetter went so far as to accuse

the Air Force of covering up the facts    He stated publicly
- Air Force officers are

that behind the scenes, high ranking
soberly concerned about UFOs. But, through official secrecy
and ridicule, many citizens are led to believe the unknown
flying objects are nonsense." Hil!enkoetter charged that

"to hide the facts, the Air Force has silenced its
personnel." (see the New York Times, Feb 28, 1960)

Unfortunately, even the public statements o~ these men
were not able to undo the years o~ Air Force debunking and
ridicule which had begun in the late 1940’s, quite possibly
as a result of the policy that Admiral Hillenkoetter helped

i ni ti ate.







What the admiral knew:
UFOsl M J-12 and Roscoe Hillenkoetter
by Bruce Maccabee

Bruce Maccabee, Ph.D., an optical physicist who
Works for the Navy, is chairman of the Fund for
UFO Research. He has written extensively on the
subject of U.S. government involvement in UFO
investigation.

Adm. Roscoe Hillenko~tter was an exemplary
military officer. During World War II he was the
Officer in Charge of Intelligence on the staff of
the Commander in Chief, Pacific Ocean Area.
Later he was the commanding officer of the
U.S.S. Dixie and Director of Planning and Control
in the Bureau of Naval Personnel. He was
awarded the Legion of Merit for his work with
Personnel and, after the Japanese surrender
aboard the U.S.S. Missouri, he assumed command
of that ship. Later he was a naval attache in
France.

In the spring of 1947 he .was called to special
duty in Washington, D.C., under the Secretary of
the Navy. On May 1, 1947, he was namedDirector
of the Central Intelligence Group which became
the Central Intelligence Agency as a result of a
presidential directive in September 1947. Thus
Hillenkoetter was the first CIA director, a
position he held until November 1950.
Subsequentl.y he was assigned to duty in the Navy
Inspector General’s Office and became the
Inspector General in August 1956.

He retiredfrom the Navy in June 1957 With
many medals and honors for his Navy work
including the Bronze Star Medal, the Purple
Heart., the World War II Victory Medal,.the
Korean Service Medal, the United Nations Service
Medal. and the Presidential Unit Citation .Badge.

In’short, Adm. Hillcnkoettcr was a capable,
respected individual who. could be trusted with
the deepest secrets of the United States
government. He could speak with authority on a
number of defense- and intelligence-related issues.
F.or that reason the credibility of UFO research
was given a boost when he joined the Board of
Governor~;’of the National Investigations
Committee on Aerial Phenomena (NICAP) in 1957.

Three years later Hillenkoetter went even
further in his support of UFO research. In 1960

he made this public statement: "U~nknown objects
are operating under intelligent control .... It is
tmperative that we learn where UFOs come from
and what their purpose is." He went on to charge
the Air Force with hiding the facts by using
-regulations to silence its personnel. He said it was.
time to end official sgcrecy and to reveal "the
truth...in open Congressional hearings."

Why woulda man of his statui’e, and
authority, a .Navy admiral and former CIA
director, join a UFO organization--reputed in
popular mythology to be the domain of kooks and
nuts? And why would he even go so far as to
support vocally one of NICAWs goals, the release
of information withheld by the government? It
need hardly be said he was aware of the Air
Force’s repeated denials that it was keeping
secretsabout flying saucers.

His UFO activities seem to make no sense in
the context of the official UFO policy of the
government for which he had worked for many
years. Yet his actions do make sense if he sought
to persuade the public that UFOs are real--
without revealing government secrets about UFOs.

Is it conceivable, in other words, that, when
he said UFOs are real, he was expressing more
than just a personal opinion?

Recently-uncovered information about UFO-
related government and Air Force activities
suggests that Hillenkgetter may well have known,
not just speculated, that UFOs exist.

Rewriting history

Several years ago I wrote a paper entitled
"Revised UFO History" (available from the Fund
forUFO Research, Box 277, Mount Rainier,
Maryland 20712, for a $5.00 donation), in that
paper I argued that, based on what we now know
about the so-called Rosweil incident, we must
take a whole new look at the early Air Force
investigation of flying-disc reports. I also said
that we must reconsider the possibility, the
subject of much discussion over the years, that
the UIS. government maintained a highly secret
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investigative effort unrelated to Project Blue
Book.

As most IUR readers will know, the Roswcll
incident of early July 1947 involved the retrieval
from the desert near Roswell, New Mexico, of a
large amount of strange material wliich was
subsequently secretly shipped to Wright-Patterson
Air Force Base (called Wright Field in 1947) for
analysis. (See William L. Moore’s summary of the
Roswell events in July/August 1986 IUR, page 15.)

The fact of the shipment to Wright-Patterson
was confirmed in a document which was released
to me by.the FBI in 1977 as a result of a Freedom
of Information Act request. Bill ¯Moore and
Stanton Friedman have located about half a dozen
living witnesses who actually handled the
material and 85 more individuals who were
directly or peripherally involved with the case.

The story put together from the witness
testimony is quite convincing. It appears that
some unusual material which fell on the Mac
Brazei ranch after an aerial object exploded was
retrieved by the Army Air Force and afterwards
the retrieval was covered up. Afuli account
appears in Moore’s "Crashed Saucers: Evidence in
Search of Proof" in the MUFON 1985 Symposium
Proceedings.

The discovery of the material by rancher
Brazel and the initial retrieval by Maj.
(subsequently Col.) Jesse Marcel (now deceased)
resulted in a press release .which began: "The
many rumors regarding the flying disc became a
reality yesterday when the intelligence officer of
the 509th Bomb Group of the Eighth Air Force,
Roswell Army Field, was fortunate enough to
gain possession of a disc through the c6operation.
of one of the local ranchers and th~ Sheriff’s
office of Chaves County" (San Francisco Chronicle,
July 9, 1947).

Within a day after this story was released by
the Roswell information officer, the Army Air
Force, at the direction of Gcn. Roger Ramcy, held
a press conference and announced that the object
was a weather balloon and radar rcf.lector, a
ridiculous story when we consider that such
devices were common in the area and would have
been recognized as suchby the intelligence
officer, Maj. Marcel. Nevertheless the Air Force
"explanation" was accepted by the press and the
public because no one outside the Air Force had
access to any of the material and thus could not
rebut the official statement and because the
firsthand civilian witnesses (Brazel in particular)

were told not to discuss the incident. The Roswell
story slept until 1979 when Friedman and Moore
tracked down Marcel and obtained his firsthand
testimony.

The "Revised UFO History" proceeds from the
assumption that, as a result of the Roswell
retrieval and numerous military sightings during
the 1947 flap, a very small group of top military
intelligence officers knew by the middle of July
1947 that flying discs were real and that,
moreover, they were not man-made. What they did
not know was the purpose or modus operandi of
the vehicles’ pilots.

If we assume that the Air Force’s top
intelligence officials knew as soon as the middle
of July 1947 that UFOs are ~:eal, we have an
explanatign for a statement by an Air Force
investigator, evidently not a member of the in-
group, who wrote ~his as part of an overview of
the flying-saucer situation sometime in late July
or early August 1947: "Lack of topside inquiries,
when compared to the prompt and demanding
inquiries that have originated topside upon
former events, gives more than ordinary weight ~o
the possibility that this is a domestic project
about which the President, etc., know."

The speculation that the flying saucers were a
"domestic project" was incorrect but the
speculation that the "President, etc., know" may
well have been correct.

It seems certain that the top generals, such as
Lt. Gen. Nathan.Twining, head of the Air
Materiel Command (AMC) where the Roswell
material was shipped, and Gen. Hoyt Vandenburg,
the Chief of Staff of the Air Force, wou,ld have
.known that the flying saucers were real and not
man-made. A few othcr~very top government
scientists and Air.Force officials would also have
known.

The cover-up begins?

rig. Gen. George F. Schulgen was the
Assistant Chief of the Intelligence Requirements
Branch of the Army Air Corps intelligence
(AC/AS-2). His job was to formulate information-
collection requirements so that the Air Force
.intelligence agents would know what types of
information to gather. Evidently, when Air Force
pilots began, seeing UFOs, he decided (or was
directed) to formulate requirements for an
intelligence-collection effort. To formulate those
requirements he had to know some characteristics
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of the UFOs. He started collecting UFO reports
early in July.

He contacted the FBI on July 10 and asked for
help. He wanted the FBI to interview civilians
who reporl~ed flying saucers so that it could be
determined whet~ier such reports were the result
of a desire to seek publicity or to advance some
political aim (such as subversive activities).
Schulgen told the FBI that the Air Force was
"utilizing all their scientists to ascertain whether
or not such a phenomenon could, in fact, occur."
He promised to supply the FBI with information
gathered by the Air Force in return for FBI help.
(Only because of Schulgen’s contact with the FBI
are we able to piece this early history together.
The Air Force Blue Book file has no information
on this phase.)

Over the months of July and August,
Schulgcn’s intelligence officers suc~ceedcd in
accumulating a sizable body of testimonial
evidence despite the lack of "prompt and
demanding inquiries" from Schulgen’s superiors.
From this evidence Schulgcn’,s officers derived
some basic characteristics of the flying discs.
Schulgen then submitted this information to the
AMC for a technical evaluation. At the head of
.the AMC was Lt. Gen. Twining, a man who
outranked Schulgen.

On September 23 Twining wrote Schulgen
indicating that he was responding to Schulgen’s
request. The letter expressed a judgment based on
the testimonial information Schulgen had
provided. Twining said the "interrogation report
data" were studied by personnel of several AMC "
aircraft laboratories and these personnel~ using
(only) Schulgen’s information, concluded that ~he
"phenomenon is something real and not visionary
or fictitious." (This statement is remarkably
similar to the conclusion formulated about two
months earlie~r by Schulgen’s officers that "this
flying saucer situation is not all imaginary or
seeing too much in some natural phenomenon.
Something is really flying around.’.’)

Although Twining’s letter listed a number of
UFO characteristics and went on to recommend
that a special project be set up to study the
situation, it also stated that there was a "lack .of
pfiysical evidence in the shape of crash rccovcrcd
exhibits which would undeniably prove the
existence of these objects."

Critics of the Roswcll incident have used

this statement to discredit the cas,e. They contend
that Twining should have known about any

physical evidence if the material had been
shipped to Wright Field for analysis by AMC.
Therefore, they argue, since his letter said there
was no physical evidence, there must have been
none and the Roswell crashis fiction.

As I pointed out in "Revised UFO History,"
however, Twining would not inform Schulgen in a
letter classified at only the Secret collatoral
clearance levelof the existence of hard evidence.
(A Secret collatoral clearance means that anyone
with the ’clearance level Secret can get a copy of
Twining’s letter to read. Since thousands of
persons had Secret clearances, it is certain that
Twining would not have put into the letter any
information that had to be restricted to only a
few individuals at the very top.) Schulgen had
askcd Twining for an opinion based only on thc
information that had been supplied by Schulgcn.
Since Schulgcn’ had not supplied any physical
evidence, the people who formulated the opinion
using only Schuigcn’s information (various experts
at the AMC laboratories) concluded that there was
none.

If Twining did know of the Rosweil crash, he
may well have decided (or been directed) to keep
tfiis fact from the people who evaluated the
testimonial information supplied by Schulgen..In
other words, as I suggested in "Revised UFO
History," Twining may have Covered up the fact
of the crash to minimize the number of people
who were aware of it. Only persons with a
specific need-to-know would have been informed
of the crash. The AMC experts.did not have a
need-to-know because they correctly evaluated the
situation (flying saucers are real and a project
shouldbe set up) using only Schulgen’s
testimonial evidence. Similarly, Schuigen did not
have a need-to-know for the hard evidence
because he was made aware of the correct
evaluation by T.wining’s letter.

This evaluation was sufficient to justify an
intelligence-collection effort by Schulgen. During
October his officers formulated the collection
requirements and on October 30 he distributed a
memorandum cntitled "Intelligence Requirements
on Flying Saucer. Typc Aircraft.’.’ The
memorandum stated that an "allcged ’Flying
Saucer’ type aircraft" had been sighted in "widely
scattered placcs, such as the United States,
Alaska, Canada, Hungary, the Island of Guam and
Japan" and had been reported by "many
competent observers including USAF rated
officers:"
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elude:1. proof that the AF secretly ordered
an airliner carrying passengers to leave
its assigned course and chase a LIFO.2. An extract from an AF intelligence
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The memorandum listed about a dozen
characteristics of flying saucers including the
"ability to quickly disappear by high speed or by.
complete disintegration." It stated that the first
American sightings "were reported around the
middle of May" (1947) and that the last reported
sightings "took place in Toronto, Canada, 14
September." Then the memorandum offered an
opinion of the objects: "While there remains the
possibility of .Russian manufacture_At is the
considered opinion of some elements that the
object may in fact represent an interplanetary craft
of some kind" (my emphasis). The memorandum
provided a list of items of special interest
(information ".requirements") that should be part
of the intelligence~,collection effort.

So, if we assume that the Roswell incident did
provide hard evidence, we may conclude that the
cover-up really got under way when Twining

¯ refused to mention in the letter to Schulgcn that a
crash had occurred and that there was, in fact,
evidence of flying saucers.

A man with a need-to-know

I f what we know of the Roswell incident is
correct--that it supplied physical, and perhaps "
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qot Get UFO Facts

Menzel, harshe~,t skeptic
admittea that he
.~1 evidencebefore

4irector,
, the
l that

AF reports
’UFOs .as mirages

he. found the AF
if they gave him

’ais interview, Menzel
at charges of AF

tntervie" ~"
chier

biological, proof that flying saucers are of
nonhuman origin--it is certain that government
and military officials at the top levels would have
been informed immediately. It would have been
evident to them that they were facing an
extremely important unknown situation beyond
their understanding and control. Until they could
understand it, they would want to keep the
physical proof secret.

To maintain the secrecy, a special group of
highly trustworthy individuals would have been
instructed to coordinate the analysis of the hard
evidence and to study its implications for science,
military technology and htimanity in general.
Furthermore the specialgroup would have been
instructed to set up a-secrecy barrier that would
control access to the hard evidence and even
access to the fact of the existence of the evidence.
(Remember, this was only two years after the end
of the most technologically-oriented war ever
fought. People were used to extreme secrecy in
military matters.) Only those few people who had
special qualifications and a need-to-know would
be authorized by the secret group to have access
to the hard evidence.

One person with a definite need-to-know was
the head of the civilian agency that monitors
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military, political and scientific developments in
nations hostile to the United States. This person
would have been responsible for providing the
special group with any information that might
indicate another country had also been fortunate
enough to have a flying saucer land in its lap.
This person would have been the.head of the CIA:
Roscoe Hillcnkocttcr.

The dirty dozen?

Is there any evidence that there actually was

a special group controlling access to the physical
evidence of flying saucers?

For roughly 30 years there was nothing other
than flimsy rumors. But in the last 10 years
information from a number of sources has
contended that such a group did exist. It appears
that the group was designated by its special access
codename MJ-12.

The term MJ-12 first turned up in a document
allegedly from the headquarters of the Air Force
Office of Special Investigations (AFOSI) dated
November 17, 1980. (AFOSI Headquarters claims,
however, that it is not the source of the
document.) This document is a response to a
request from the District 17 office of AFOSI at
Kirtland Air Force Base in Albuquerque, New
Mexico. Evidently the Kirtland AFOSI had asked
headquarters to analyze some photos and film
t~aken.by a civilian who lives near Kirtland AFB
and also’had asked fo~: a clarification of the
policy regarding UFO sightings and the Air
Force’s actions concerning them.

The response from headquarters, besides
indicating that at least some of the film images
were unidentified, cohtains the following
provocative statement: "The official US
government policy and results of Project Aquarius
is [sic] still classified Top Secret with no
dissemination outside official intelligence
channels and with restricted access to ’MJ
Twelve.’"

The genuineness of portions of this document
is in question because some of the information is
known to be false. Nonetheless through official
channels 1 confirmed the existence of a Project
Aquarius. A report of the project was completed
in 1976. I was not told of the subject matter .but I
was told it was so highly classified that it
probably would never be released. (A recent
adn~ission by the National Security Agency that
there currently is a Project Aquarius refers to a

"new" Project Aquarius, not to the one completed
a decade ago.)

Of even greater importance in establishing

.the existence of MJ-12 is a document Bill Moore
found in the files of the National Archives. The
document, dated July 14, 1954, is a formerly Top.
Secret memorandum to Gen. Twining (!). The
subject of the memorandum is "NSC/MJ-12
Special Studies Project." The memorandum says
that "the president [Eisenhower] has decided that
the MJ-12 SSP briefing should take place during
the already scheduled meeting of July 16, rather
than following it as previously intended." The
memo adds that Twining should mike plans to
attend. It was signed by Robert Cutler, special.
assistant to the President.

(Investigators have assumed that NSC stands
for National Security Council. But a cursory
search of NSC records has failed to turn up
anything on MJ-12. According to National
Archives records, there was no NSC meeting on
July 16, 1954.)

The existence of MJ-12 was independently
confirmed by researcher Lee Graham. Graham
saw a Top Secret document written in the fall of
1952 for presentation to the "President elect"
(Eisenhower). It referred to MJ-12 and to an
ongoing study of crashed saucers by a small group
of high-level government and mil.itary people.
Although Graham was not allowed to copy the
document, he did write down the list of the 12
individuals said to be members of the group. Two
of them were Gen. Nathan Twining and Gen.
Hoyt Vandenburg. Another was Vannevar Bush.
That Bush should be listed is not surprising; he
was the chief science consultant to the President.

Further evidence that Bush was involved with
a special group studying UFOs comes from a
completely-different source, a formerly Top
Secret memorandum released, perhaps by accident,
by the Canadian government in the late 1970s.
The memorandum, written by Wilbert B. Smith on
November 21, i950, states that "flying saucers

¯ exist" and that the subject is "the most highly
classified subject in the United States
Government, rating even higher than the H-
bomb." Although it does not name the special
group working on the UFO ,question, it says that a
"concentrated effort is being made by a small
group headed by Doctor Vannevar Bush."

We also have the testimony of the late Dr.
Robert Sarbacher, who apparently was the

INTERNATIONAL UFO REPORTER NOVEMBER/DECEMBER 198~ 19



original source for the information in the Smith
memorandum. Sarbacher, an expert in missile

¯ guidance, worked on numerous defense projects in
the late 1940s and early ’50s. In the course of a
phone interview several years ago he told me he
had been invited to visit Wright-Patterson AF8 to
view the remains of a crashed saucer and
occupants but that he had not been able to go.
He said, however, that some of his colleagues who
also wdrked on classified defense projects did go.

In a 1983 letter responding to questions posed
by another researcher, William Steinman,
Sarbacher stated that all he could remember
(about 30 years later) was that "certain materials
reported to have come from flying saucer crashes
were extremely light and very tough." He also
remembered that the "people operating these
machines were also very light weight, sufficient
to withstand the tremendous acceleration and
deceleration associated with their machinery."
Sarbacher said he had the impression from talking
with-the men who saw the remains that the aliens
.were "constructed like certain insects we have
observed on earth." Sarbacher repeated this when
I talked with him in 1985. He believed Vannevar
Bush was involved with a groul~ of people
studying the saucers; so, too, was Dr. Robert
Oppenheimer. (Oppenheimer’s name was not on
the MJ-12 list seen by Graham.)

I have heard from a source who was once in a
wel.l-connected position at wright-Patterson that a
small group has continued to work on UFO
hardware. This source told me that he first heard
about the ongoing work in the mid-1960s and that
he heard more about it a decade later. Although
unaware of the precise nature of the work, he
claimed it involved the analysis of alien bodies.

Other names on the MJ-12 list include well-
known scientists and government officials
including James Forrestal, who in September 1947
became the first Secretary of Defense, and Sidney
Souers, who organized the Central Intelligence
Group which became the CIA. He "retired" when
the name was changed and Hillenkoetter took
over. Subsequently, on September 26, 1947, Souers
became the first executive secretary of the
National Security Council (which had its first
meeting on that same day).

One name on the list is a complete surprise:
Donald H. Menzel, the famous and widely-
respected Harvard University astrophysicist. At
the time the special group was being formed (pre-.
sumably in the fall of 1947), Menzel had made no
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public statements regarding flying saucers; in f:~ct
he did not become a public skeptic until the
middle of. 1952 after Life magazine published a
major story supporting the existence of flying
saucers. This was also the time of the great 1952
UFO flap when the number of sightings per
month was at an all-time high and 15ressure on the
Air Force to release information was intense.

If it is true that he was part of MJ-12, then
his ludicrous explanations of well-documented
UFO sightings become understandable. (See my
paper "Still in Default," which appears in the
MUFON 1986 UFO Symposium Proceedings, for
examples of Menzel’s error-filled and perhaps
even fraudulent explanations .of ear, ly sightings.
The paper is also available from the Fund for
UFO Research in return for a $15.00 donation.)
Perhaps Menzel’s debunking was a form of
damage control. To preserve the secret that the
U.S. government had one or more crashed discs, he
used his scientific authority to debunk all
sightings to make it look as if there were no
scientific basis for them, thereby rendering
absurd the notion that crashed UFOs might exist.

Whether or not this was the case, there is no
doubt that Menzel’s debunking had considerable
impact. Menzel’s explanations (and those of other
debunkers), when combined with official Air
Force denials, discouraged the scientific
community’s interest in the phenomenon.
Consequently scientists and the news media were
led to attribute all sightings to hoaxes or mistakes
and thus generally to ignore them.

The rejection of sighting reports applied even
more strongly to any stories that leaked out about
crashed discs. Thus the ultimate secret acquired
the ultimate protection: no ohe goes looking for
something that he believes does not exist.

Let us return now to Adm. Hillenkoetter. As

head of the CIA he would have had a need-to-
know for information related to a crash so that
he could determine the requirements for
collecting intelligence about any cr~ashes that
might occur, or might have occurred, in other
countries. So we ought not to be surprised to learn
that at ~he top of the MJ-12 list Graham saw the
name Roscoe Hillenkoetter.

But if he was part of MJ-12, a group that was
sworn to secrecy about crashed discs, why did he
join NICAP in 1957, only about a month after
retiring from active duty?



I cannot provide a conclusive answer "to that
question. But I can offer this speculation: He did
so because (a) he knew for a fact that flying
saucers are real and piloted by intelligent entities
and (b) he did not agree with thepolicy of
keeping UFO information from the. public and
the scientific community. I think he wanted to
use his reputation and authority to alert the
scientific community to the reality of UFOs.
Perhaps because the MJ-12 group had not been
able to answer the questions he posed in 1960
(where do they come from and whyare they
here?), he felt that a large-scale effort by many
scientists was necessary.

Naturally he could not reveal the Top Secret
informatior~ about the crashed discs by himself.
To do that, he would have had to persuade all of
the.MJ-12 members and also the top advisors to
the President (Eisenhower, at the time
Hillenkoetter joined NICAP) that the information
should be declassified. When he failed to do this,
he offered his public support for the endeavors of
a credible civilian UFO research group .and thus
he joined the Board of Governors of NICAP.

Because Hillenkoetter and several other
admirals (Delmer,S. Fahrney, a guided-missile

expert, and Herbert. Knowles) were members of
NICAP’s Board of Governors, NICAP had a level
of credibility unmatched by any UFO
organization since then. These meh and the other
well-respected members.of the board allowed their
n~mes to be entered into the Congressional Record
as favoring the release of secret information to
the general public (Congressional Record,
September 2, 1960, page A6714).

Hillenkoetter went so far as to accuse the Air
Force of c6vering up the facts. He stated
publicly that "behind the scenes, high-ranking Air
Force officers are soberly concerned about UFOs.
But, thorough official secrecy and ridicule, man3/
citizens are led to believe the unknown flying
objects are nonsense." Hillenkoetter charged that
"to hide the facts, the Air Force has silenced its
personnel" (New York Times, February 28, 1960).

Unfortunately, even the public statements of
these men were unable to undo the years of Air
Force debunking and ridicule which had begun in
the late 1940s, quite possibly as a result of the
policy that Adm. Hillenkoetter helped initiate.

(e) 1987 Bruce Maccabee

Spaceship and saltshaker
continued from

worked on the property (owned by rancher John
Ellis, identified in the press accounts as one Of
the witnesses) where the crash supposedly
occurred.

"I grew up hearing pioneer stories but never
did I hear this one until my son sent it to me in
1964 or 1965," she told me. At that time she talked
with other longtime residents "but I could never"
find anyone who had ever heard of it."

Those of us who have researched 19th-Century
UFO reports, as recorded in that century’s
American newspapers, have learned that the
sto-~:ies are often (and maybe mostly) journalistic
hoaxes, tall tales concocted to fool or amuse
readers. Practically every "high-strangeness" UFO
tale that isinvestigatable has proven to be false.
Two prominent examples are the Aurora, Texas,
airship crash and the LeRoy, Kansas, calf napping,

both alleged to have taken place during the ever-
more-dubious "great airship scare" of April 1897.

Nonetheless the Dundy County yarn is starting
to appear in the UFO literature -- and, alas, to be
taken seriously. Its first (and, I hope, last)
appearance between the covers of a book is in
George C. Andrews" Extra-Terrestrials Among Us
(Llewellyn, 1986).

Andrew, s reprints the follow-up story with its
telltale "spoonful of salt" reference but misses the
gag entirely. Instead he goes on to offer this
bizarre--and bizarrely hum6rless--speculation: "In
my opinion, the storm was artif!cially created so
that a UFO concealed within the clouds could
retrieve the wreckage of the crashed UFO."

To which I Say: Please pass the salt.
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HILLENKOETTER, ROSCOE H.--Co.t.
tablislled under the National Security Council
by the National Security Act of 1947. Its di-
rector is appointed by the President with the
advice and consent of the United States Senate.
The United States Government Or9aai:ati°a
Manual describes the purl~ose of the CIA as
"’the coordination of the intelligence activities
of the several Government departments and
agencies in the interest of national security."
The law specifically provides, states the Con-
.aressional Directory, "that the Agency shall
have no police, subpoena or law-enforcement
powers, or inter?hal-security functions. How-
ever, the director is respousible for protecting
intelligence sources and methods from unauthor-
ized disclosure." The Army and Navy intelli-
gence and the State Department are now re-
quired to channel their intelligence data through
the CIA for analysis and interpretation, stated
Ronald Robinson m his Satarday E~eain.a Post
article, "They Fight the Cold War Under
Cover." The Federal Bureau of ln~stigation
relinquished its wartime Latin American net-
work to the CIA and, in the field of interna-

that o. the whole it felt CIA had made a good
start." Admiral Leahy, who reportedly was
resp,.sible for Hillenkoetter’s alPpo!ntment.t°
the CIA. has said that "no man m the country
has a better grasp of the mechanics of foreign
iutelligence than Hillenkoetter" (Robinson’s
words), and is said to give him personal credit
for virtually all of CIA’s accompli~ments.
According to Robinson, its director recewes an
annual salary of $14,000,

lu Jtme 1950, a few days after the outbreak
of the Kore:m war, several Congressmen de-
mallded an exldanalion of what they regarded
as CIA i~e~ciency, the Uuited States having
:~ppareully been surprised by the North Kof
cans’ iuvasiou of South Korea. Appeariug be-
fore the Senate Appropriations Commiuee, Hil-
|o~koetlcr stated that the attack had been
peered for the past year--concentrations of
Communist forces were known to have taken
place--l,ut that it was not possible Io predict
the "zer~ hour." Committee members, reported
newspapers, were satisfied by the CIAdirec.
tor’s explauation. On August 18 the White
House annouuced that General Walter Bedell "

fional intelligence, t]~e FBI is. n.o.w responsible
Snfith. commander of the First Army and ex-

only, for counteresp,onage acttwt~es within the
Ambassador to Mo~ow, would succ~! ltillen-

Umted States and its ~ssessions.
koe.er as CIA dlr~tor at the end of ~p-

¯ ¯ " o¢ tember. Hillenkoelter, who had previously re-
Whale Hdlenk~tter was the first d~rector._~ ......, ........ , duty in early Novend~r
~.~ ~ms. pr~=~:~ -� .... rai - ~,~,k ¯ e~an~"o~Na~ ~S~e.d’. T~intelligence wor~ ....... . , ~’~ h~- .... which is assi~ to o=e prot~t=~

Hoyt S. Vandenberg = and_Rear ~a~ra=. ~ta-~ ..... - -- .
hey W. ~uers"=, who is Executive.3ecretaryformosa.
o~ the ~ational S~urity Council. These shifts The Navy man has ~n awarded (in
in command have ~en seen by the Uailed S’latestion Io the two decorations mentlon~) the
N~s as one of the obstacles that HillenkmtterPurlde Heart Medal, the Victory M~al,
had to face to make the C1A fnlly e~ective.Atlantic Fleet Clasp, (U.S.S. Minnesota), and
Other obstacles, accordi.g to 1he same Ig’ri~"l-is entitled to wear the American Defenm
i~l, were "the ~d~ble ~tweeu the Army’s̄ ice Medal, the Asiatic-Pacific ~m~i~
G-2, ~aval Intelligence, and the State Depart-the American Cam~ign M~al, and the World
ment as to CIA’s exact function," and the ap-
prehensiveness of Congressmen "at the idea
of the United States indulging in international
espionage,"

The disturbances in Colombia during the first
week of the Inter-American Conference which
convened in Bogot,~ on March 30, I~48, pre-
.cipitated the first public investigation of the
work of the CIA. Hillenkoetter was called be- ¯
fore’ the House Executive Expendilures sub-
committee on April 15 to testify on charges
that the CIA had failed to warn the State De-
partment of any possible violence. Hillenkoet-
ter declared that the CIA "did know of unrest
in Colombia" and that a CIA dispatch from
Bogot:t, dated March 23, revealed that "ad-
vance delegate [of the State Department] O. J.
Libert . . ¯ does not consider it advisable to
notify the State Department of this situation,
since he feels adequate protection will be given
by police and does not want to alarm delegates
unduly."

Subsequent to the Bogot~t incident two sur-
veys of the CIA were conducted, one by the
Hoover Commission, the other by a group

~uinted by the President and headed by Allen
Iles’’~. Clarke Beach, Washington corre-

spondent of the Nc’w York Herald THbane,
stated that the "Hoover Commission indicated

War lI Victory Medal. He was awarded the
Order of the Phoenix, degree of Commander,
by the government of Greece; the Order
Saint Maurice and Saint~,Lazarus, degree o(
Commander, by Italy; tbd~Legion of Itonor,
rank of Officer, and the Order of Maritime
MeriL by France; and the Med:d of Merit by
Nicaragua.

Hillenkoetter is. a tall man, with closely
cropped hair. lie married Jane E. Clark,
d;mghter of Ca Navy doctor, on November 21,
1933; they have one daughter, Jane. It is
ported by his friends that he only broke his
ro.tine of twelve to fourteen hours of work
a day in the i¢~a’rded ofl3ces of the CIA for an
occasional afternoon of golf, which he shoots
in the low nineties. According to the Salarday
F.t, enin.a Post article, Hillenkoetter’s "chief
recreation is the reading of history, and he is
said to he an expert on the writings of Marx,
l.enin and Stalin, quoting at length from them
to prove a point."
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STANTON T. FRIEDMAN
NUCLEAR PHYSICIST. LECTURER

79 PEMBROKE CRK~F_.NT
FREDERI~I’ON, NEW BRUNSWICK E3B 2Vl

," CANADA ~

(506) 457-0232

Dear Psychic Phil: August 6, 1988

Few loose ends to cl.~ar up.. hastily.~    ~!
). I am enclosing my"DebunKing a Debunker~piece... thanks for providing so much bunk.

2. To answer your question in STF-1, of course I am willing to admit I am fallible,
Never said I wasn’t, lhere are eyen a couple of other minor errors in my article.
Yours certainly provides an excel-lent example of your outstanding use of the
propagandist tool known as selective choice of data. I used "letter " once and memo
I I times~-all, for ID purposes i.n sp, eaking of the Truman-Forresta! Memo~(TFM).-.

You used~lette~8 or 9 tlmes and memo never in the Press release., all for the purpose
of trying unsucessfullyto say it was a fraud...talk about fallibie~.~F

3. I am ~eally grateful for your July 28 item re Hillenkoetter-Menzel. Boy did you
put your foot in your mouth in this one ¯ ...-¯

a. The article has NO signatures and n,.~o copies of letters only closes and typed
versions.

b. The Briefing document has only one signature.. Truman’s.
c. As you are well aware~l of 4 Hi]lenkoetter letters does indeed use the ri

(day, month, comma, year) date format. Has it never occurred to you that 0
different date formats are used for military as opposed to civilian correspondencel

d. I am enclosing a copy of the Hille~er letter.., you will note that it is
indeed signed ....... handwritten.., so much for never using Roscoe
whic~va.s an absurd argument to begin with.

4. I certainly hope tnat zhe above examples are not a Sign of senility or some serious
disease setting in.

5. You might check to see now old RHH and DHM were at the time and where they lived
and let me know your source for their ever being meetings of MJ-12-- all toget, her...

Hav~ ~ gre~at August. chewin~ on your foot.
.~/~ ~ " --~.~,-~/ .// This to theleft is a signature-just so you no~ the diff.

I, . "
" ~tantdn-~F. Friedman" (This is typed ¯close or whatever)

Science Consultant ¯ Lecturer ¯ Author ¯ Broaclcaster



Hr. ~lf~ang Navel
WetnberBwe£ 57
7 Stuttgart 80 (ValhinRen)
West Cormany

Dear Hr. Nags1:

3 ~in~s~ood Road
~eehawken, N, J.

14 December, 1970

In reply to the questions in your letter of 8 December, I never stated that
the unknown objects were operattn~ under Intelligent control. I did say that ’
UFO’s should be investigated to ~ ~o find ou~ If ~hey exisCed~ and
where ~hey ca~e from. ...

As far as I k~w, U~’s are ~t of ex~ra*terres~rlal orl~In for ~e follo~,
Ing reasons:

(a) For a~ leas~ 25 ycars~ ~here have been ~ - comple~ety authenticated
siShtlng of such craft . no~hln.~ tlke, for exampte~ seeing a ?A? on a
runway or in ~he alr~ by numbers o£ p~ple.

(b) In a negative ser,se, also~ In 25 years there ~s been ~ deflniee
~si~Ive acelon by a U~ eieher of frlendly or hostile naeure. Surely,
If they exis~, In a11 ~ha~’~i~e one or ~re ~uld have ~ade �onCsc~
again either frlendly or hose~le, with some par~ of she earth.
lack of such actions ~es ~e bailers ~ha~ U~’s. f~m ou~slde the
earth have ~ as ye~ vis~eed here.

Neither the U.S. Air Force nor the Pentagon has issued any orders suppressln~
the truth about U~’s.

I have never heard of anyone who was An possession of UF~} fragments and as far

as I know no such UFO fra~,:ents exist.
,~

The conclusions as to the cxtra-terrestrlal orig~n of UPJ’s are~ in my bel~ef,
insufficient and unproven.

I~now of noprominent sclenttst or officer advocating the extra-terrestrlal
origin of the ~Fr)’s in public.

For your !nfor~at~on I am enclosing a copy oE a letter received from Dr. Willis
in California and my reply thereto. You may lake to get In touch with him.

Very truly yours,

R. If. I~i11~nkoetter
Vice Ad~,iral, U.S.N, (Rat.)



UFO.JNVESTIGATOR .....
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Page

Landing Probed by
NICAP, AF

said; might cause a phosphine smell, explaining tho o~S odor.

.~,.~,:~. On the night fell.wing the Cherry Creek Incident, State Trooper
Richard Ward, t few miles from this ar~&:watc, hed an object with
eight circular lights In line flying twice as f~t a a Jet. It en~tted
a faint, unfamtilar purring sound.

Dr, Fred C. Fair and John MazwsLt, of NICAP New York Sub~
committee NO. 2, carefully checked the Cherry Creek sits and
qusstionod the witnesses, On the bnsts of presant evidence, they

¯ helisve,tt~ report is genuino. Dr. Fair has confirmed that two
¯ stats troopers who Investigated also seem to b~ �onvincnd.

Ws wish we cupid i by neme ~ ~ NICAP investigators,
sub.commlttees and affiliates and other members who have
worked so hard to investigate the many recent sightinKs. Without
their ald~ we would not have been able to check many important

We re~rot we cannot personally thank a~l of you who have sent
In newspaper etip8 on stghtings. We appreciate this help very
much, and it wilt be especially important now since we have had

: :..ately and quote Adm. Hlllenkoettor’s January 8th latter’to get the
, hcts on record.



Hr. ~lE~a.g
Wetnberg~eg 57
7 Stutt,~art 80 (ValhtnRen)
West Germany

Dear F:r. Nasal:

In reply to the questions in your letter o~ 8 December, X never stated that
the unknown objects uere oper~tin~ under intellt;en~ control-’~I did say that
UFO,s-should be ~nvestigated to try to f~nd out £~ they existed, and if ~o
~here they came ~rom.

As ~ar as I know, UF)’s are no~ oE e~tra-~er~e~trial orl$in for the follow-
in~ reasons:

(a) For at least 25 years, there havebeen no -completsly authenticated.
sighting o£ such craft o nothing lilts, £or example, seeing a 747 on a
runway or in the air, by numbers o£ people.

(b) In a negative se:,se, also, in 25 years there has been no de£inite
positive action by a U z’D either o~ ~riendly or hostile nature. Surety,
i£ they exist, in all thaC’tlme one or more ~ould have made Contact.
again either friendly or hostile, with somepart o~ the earth. The
lack of such actions makes me believo that Ue~’s ~r~m outside the
earth have not as yet vlsited, here.

Neither the U.S. Air Force r~ar the Pentagon has issued any orders suppressin~
the truth about U E~3,s.                            ¯

1 have never h~ard of anyone ~ yes in possession o£ U~} fragments and as far
as i kno~ no such U~ fra~,,:~nCs exist.

The conclusions as to the cxtra-terrestrlal origin oE UPJ’s are, in my belle~,
JnsuE£1clent and unprnven.

I know of no prominent scientist or ofgicer advocating ~he extra-terrestrial
origin of the U~r}’s in public.                       "

For your infor,~atton I am enclosing a copy oE a letter received from Dr. Ntllis
in Cali£ornla and my reply thereto. You may llke ~o get in touch vith him.

Apt

Very truly yours,

R. I1. Hlllenkoetter
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Spring aperitif
in women’s sizes

-let thougffts center on
’Lad.v Smart". for spring.
[-’hna cotton and rayon coup-
:tic?---crispy tissue-light,
avish look of silk shantung.
Wash by hand: or machine,
.irip dry, iron shy. A beauti-
i.ul descent of aplbliqued lace
,~n. bodice, below-the-elbo~v
sleeves,, convertible neckline.
Naw,. willow green, blue or
mocha. Sizes 14p~ to 22~.’~.
"trademark qf the Fabr~x Corp., N.Y.C..

Waaamake~ |aahioas, se~o~d level

~:ome in, write or phone in

Manhattan: LOrraine 2-6300

ili Westchester: YOnkers 9-1100

shop Monday,-Th.ursday: 12 to 9i30..
Tuesday, Wednesday, Friday, Saturday: 10

Ādd ~Sc’for shlppln~ and h~ndlin~ beyond regular
:,~,,,,,r delivery area. Add loc on C.~.D’,

¯~rta’... no C.O.I)’~ outside area.

~.~ANHASSET

qEW .YORK TIMES, SUNDAY, FEBRUARY 28, 1960.

:/tilt izlt~U ~     a~t ,~O’K~fe acting tas~t~ g~-’,~
~. [ X~fl] ~je~ at ’the time. to call atten-;,
. ~[[O,[]~tion to re~ Air Force reg-



i, ." By DOUGLAS LAI~S~N

: ... .~Man’s .invasion of space
¯ :~/.’.i .. - -: ’.- should, produce a solution

¯ " :" " " tO~%he intriguing mystery
’ ,,..~.:! ~::’~: .. ~... :~,~oi:.:unlclenl;iilefl £1ylnff oo-

~~t~g~Os which have
’~Ntu~ed up,again in the. ¯ . ..~ ~,

I _... .

wake of Russia’s two Sput~i 0go feet above Washington

niks. ’ ’~.[ at night reported to M o o n.
.--: ’ " !’. watch control, center officers.

This is the belief of the f0r!’ here that he saw a disk. i
m@r head 6( the U.~. Centt"h~ shaped object flashing across
Tntelligende Agency, Admiral the sky. Moonwatch’officials[ ’ .

"

R. H. Hillenkoette-~’: . ~ quickly determined that it i@
could not have been. Sputnik.

~.....~..~..~.~ , ~.~..~:~ :~..."Satellite and space explora~ " ¯ Maj. Keyhoe elaborated: ’ ~.~,~~:~...~
tion programs.should give ug, ¯ ¯
new, valuable in£ormation oR: "Russia and the U.S. have
UFOs, affording defini[e,,evi-i a~nnounced they are definite-~/’: "’’ "---::’ ::~". ~ ........’
dence- as to their reality hei .Iv Dlannin~ several space ma- i -
savs, and th~s w~tl result be.~,- chines So ~t s orate l)oss~ble.
cause of a tremendous zn-~ that these fzrst space .shzpsL
crease in observation of the: or-satellites may enc0unter.! : ..-
sky by radar, and telescope~ ot her interplanetary ma-

....:..r:., .... ...:..-:..::.:.... :’. ....:.::.:::>~..,,.-::..-." ...~:; informed flying saucer ex-]
" ..5....:.~.. :::..::; =:d..,/:..:.~.’,. ",..,’./~’..:.: perts. He is a member of ~he~
- . ,.... :: ."’~ ~:~". ’:~’ :’ .. ¯ :-.,, ¯ -...;’. ,L ~board oI governors o~ [lid

ne~v National "Investigation’
Committee 9g Aeriai Phenom- [

" " " " " " :’" =~.’ ?. ’..._.-...,:..._ .- .:;,~-~ ena. w i t h headquarters a~
.::~ I Iq ........~ ..... ~ Connecticu~-av nw.: - "

¯ -;-"~’:~,~/~’~--~,~- ,.~-.~-~ :~.: ~ ........ ;:~,J~:~:-~:%: ~-. :-t NICAP’s members ~nclude
:’~:. " ~~..~ ...... - .~ some top scientists and prom-.
~~~,~~~.~..~,.~ ment c,t~zens attempting to

.... ~ . . ::..:...- . - ’...-’:~...~- ~ saucer mystery. - ¯ ¯ -.

:’ ,":. [ They all agree with Admir-
’ " ’: al Hfilenkoetter that the’ ad-~

’ . ...": ¯ : vent of space exploration ~.
.. .. :. could solve the saucer secrets.

.. tracking systems and by na-i chines, manned, or ofhemvise, i
ked-eye observations.’"~

"i Our space devices may even ,
’ " ’ - ~’ ............ ’" : "~’~’~:’"] :’"" he-closely-approached.by such "= ...... ""

" EXPERT . ¯ "" .: i hlien machines. " -

Since leaving asboss of~ CO~IMUNICATION
the nation’s top-levelintelli-L ~.
aa-~ ~a nv e: Admir~ . I£ thin happens our space~ ..... ~.n.~, th . ~ ........
~.~eco~ .one.. ~£. the..best~ ~.oewces coum ve eqmppe~

attempt automatic communi-
cation, by ligh~ signals, or
radio. Any answer would be
automatically r e 1 a y e d
earth, aad direct commu~k.z-
tion could be established from

~he communication sys~ems.~’

M~. ~y~oe added:    :
"Since the U.S. and theRds-

slans are planning moon
bases, it is not .impossible~..
tha~ a race from some o~her
planet could ~ady have se~
up such an operating::base~
on. the moon;" ...

¯ . " .... ’ ~ ’ And: Russia’s .Sputnik
,. ..... .,:: " " already greatly increased- re-.

-. ¯            ... , ports o£. sauce~ szghtmgs. ¯.
¯ . ., ’ : " .... ’ .:’.’ Retired Marine Maj. Don-

- .- . ., " ¯ ~,~ ¯ . "~- .... "    .., ~EPO~..

: a~ter Sputnik’s appearance an
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I cannot provide a conclusive answer to that
question. But I can offer this speculation: He did
so because (a) he knew for a fact that flying
saucers are real and piloted by intelligent entities
and (b) he did not agree with the policy of
keeping UFO information from the public and
the scientific community. I think he wanted to
use his reputation and authority to alert the
scientific community to the reality of UFOs.
Perhaps because the MJ-12 group had not been
able to answer the questions he posed in 1960
(where do they come from and why are they
here?), he felt that a large-scale effort by many
scientists was necessary.

Naturally he could not reveal the Top Secret
information about the crashed discs by himself.
To do that, he would have had to persuade all of
the MJ-12 members and also the top advisors to
the President (Eisenhower, at the time
Hillenkoetter joined NICAP) that the information
should be declassified. When he failed to do this,
he offered his public support for the endeavors of
a credible civilian UFO research group and thus
he joined the Board of Governors of NICAP.

Because Hillenkoetter and several other
admirals (Delmer S. Fahrney, a guided-missile

expert, and Herbert Knowles)were members of
NICAP’s Board of Governors, NICAP had a level
of credibility unmatched by any UFO
organization since then. These men and the. other.
well-respected members of the board allowed their

¯ names to be entered into the Congressional Record -
as favoring the release of secret information to
the general public (Congressional Record,
September 2, 1960, page A6714).

Hillenkoetter went so far as to accuse the Air
Force of covering up the facts. He stated
publicly that "behind the scenes, high-ranking Air
Force officers are soberly concerned about UFOs.
But, through official secrecy and ridicule, many
citizens are led to believe the unknown flying
objects are nonsense." Hillenkoetter charged that
"to hide the facts, the Air Force has silenced its
personnel" (New York Times, February 28, 1960).

Unfortunately, even the public statements of
these men were unable to undo the years of Air
Force debunking and ridicule which had begun in
the late 1940s, quite possibly as a result of the
policy that Adm. Hillenkoetter helped initiate.

(e) 1987 Bruce Maccabee

ATTACHMENTS

Comments by Delmer

Comments by

I! !!

Congressman

S. Fahrney, Jan. 15, 1957

R.H. H±llenkoetter, Nov. 18, 1957

, Feb. 28, 1960

L.G. Wolf- Sept. 2, 1960
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original source for the information in the Smith
memorandum. Sarbacher, an exper~ in missile .
guidance, worked on numerous defense projects in
the late 1940s and early ’50s. In the course of a
phone interview several years ago he told me he
had been invited to visit Wright-Patterson AFB to
view the remains of a crashed saucer and~
occupants but that he had not been able to go..
He said, however, that some of his colleagues who
also worked on classified defense projects did. go.

In a 1983 letter responding to questions posed
by another researcher, William Steinman,
Sarbacher stated that all he could re~ember
(about 30 years later) was that "certain materials
reported to have come from flying saucer crashes
were extremely light and very tough." He also
remembered that the "people operating these
machines were also very light weight, sufficient
to withstand the tremendous acceleration and
deceleration associated with their machinery."
Sarbacher said he had the impression from talking
with the men who saw the remains that the aliens
were "constructed like certain insects we have
observed on earth." Sarbacher repeated this when
I talked with him in 1985. He believed Vannevar.
Bush was involved with a group of people
studying the saucers; so, too, was Dr. Robert .
Oppenheimer. (Oppenheimer’s name was not on
the MJ-12 list seen by Graham.)

I have heard from a source who was once in a
well-connected position at Wright-Patterson that a
small group has continued to work on UFO
hardware. This source told me that he first heard
about the ongoing work in the mid-1960s and that
he .heard more about it a decade later. Although
unaware of the precise nature of the work, he
claimed it involved the analysis of alien bodies.

Other names on the MJ-12 list include well-
known scientists and government officials
including James Forrestal, who in September 1947
became the first Secretary of Defense, and Sidney
Souers, who organized the Central Intelligence
Group which became the CIA. He "retired" when
the name was changed and Hillenkoetter took
over. Subsequently, on September 26, 1947, Souers
became the first executive secretary of .the
National Security Council (which had its first
meeting on that same day).

One name on the list isa complete.surprise:
Donald H. Menzel, the famous and widely-
respected Harvard University astrophysicist. At
the time the special group was being formed (pre-
sumably in the fall of 1947), Menzel had made no

~0 INTER.NATIONAL UFO REPORTER NOVEMBER/DE~EMBER 1~80

public statements regarding flying saucers; in fact
he did. not .become a: public skeptic until the
middle of. 1952 after Life magazine published a
majo; story supporting the existence of flying
saucers.. This was also the time of the great 1952
UFO flap wl~en the number of sightings per
month Was at an all-time high and pressure on the
Air Force to release information was intense.

If it is true that he was part of MJ-12, then
his ludicrous explanations of well-documented
UFO sightings become understandable. (See my
paper "Still in Default," which appears in the
MUFON 1986 UFO Symposium Proceedings, for
examples of Menzel’s error-filled and perhaps
even fraudulent explanations of early sightings.
The paper is also available from the Fund for
UFO Research in return for a $15.00 donation.)
Perhaps Menzel’s debunking was a form of
damage control. To preserve the secret that the
U.S. governmeat had one or more crashed discs, he
used his scientific authority to debunk all
sightings to make it look as if there were no
scientific basis for them, thereby rendering
absurd the notion that crashed UFOs might exist.

Whether or not this was the ease, there is no
doubt that Menzel’s debunking had considerable
impact. Menzel’s explanations (and those of other
debunkers), when combined with official Air
Force denials, discouraged the scientific
community’s interest in the phenomenon.
Consequently scientists and the news media were
led to attribute all sightings to hoaxes or mistakes
and thus generally to ignore them.

The rejection of sighting reports applied even
more strongly to any stories that leaked out about
crashed discs. Thus the ultimate secret acquired
the ultimate protection: no one goes looking for
something that he believes does not exist.

Let us return now to Adm. Hillenkoetter. As

head of the CIA he would have had a need-to-
know for information related to a crash so that
he could determine the requirements for
collecting intelligence about any crashes that
might occur, or might have occurred, in other
countries. So we ought not. to be surprised to learn
that at the top of the MJ-12 list Graham saw the
name Roscoe Hillenkoetter.

But if he was part of MJ-12, a group that was
sworn to secrecy about crashed discs, why did he
join NICAP in 1957, only about a month after
retiring from active duty?
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military, political and scientific developments in
nations hostile to the United States. This person
would have been responsible for providing the
special group with any information that might
indicate another country had also been fortunate
enough to have a flying saucer land in its lap.
This person would have been the head of the CIA:
Roscoe Hillenkoetter.

The dirty dozen?

Is there any evidence that there actually was

a special group controlling access to the physical
evidence of flying saucers?

For roughly 30 years there was nothing other
than flimsy rumors. But in the last 10 years
information from a number of sources has
contended that such a group did exist. It appears
that the group was designated by its special access
codename MJ-12.

The term MJ-12 first turned up in a document
allegedly from the headquarters of the Air Force
Office of Special Investigations (AFOSI) dated
November 17, 1980. (AFOSI Headquarters claims,
however, that it is not the source of the
document.) This document is a response to a
request from the District 17 office of AFOSI at
Kirtland Air Force Base in Albuquerque, New
Mexico. Evidently the Kirtland AFOSI had asked
headquarters to analyze some photos and film
taken by a civilian who lives near Kirtland AFB
and also had asked for a clarification of the
policy regarding UFO sightings and the Air
Force’s actions concerning them.

The response from headquarters, besides
indicating that at least some of the film images
were unidentified, contains the following
provocative statement: "The official US
government policy and results of Project Aquarius
is [sic] still classified Top Secret with no
dissemination outside official intelligence
channels and with restricted access to ’MJ
Twelve.’"

The genuineness of portions of this document
is in question because some of the information is
known-to be false. Nonetheless through official
channels I confirmed the existence of a Project
Aquarius. A report of the project was completed
in 1976. I was not told of the subject matter but I
was told it was so highly classified that-it
probably would never be released. (A recent
admission by the National Security Agency that
there currently is a Project Aquarius refers to a

"new" Project Aquarius, not to the one completed
a decade ago.)

Of even greater importance in establishing

the existence of MJ-12 is a document Bill Moore
found in the files of the National Archives. The
document, dated July 14, 1954, is a formerly Top
Secret memorandum to Gen. Twining (!). The
subject of the memorandum is "NSC/MJ-12
Special Studies Project." The memorandum says
that "the president [Eisenhower] has decided that
the MJ-12 SSP briefing should take place during
the already scheduled meeting of July 16, rather
than following it as previously intended." The
memo adds that Twining should make plans to
attend. It was signed by Robert Cutler, special
assistant to the President.

(Investigators have assumed that NSC stands
for National Security Council. But a cursory
search of NSC records has failed to turn up
anything on MJ-12. According to National
Archives records, there was no NSC meeting on

The existence of MJ-12 was independently
confirmed by researcher Lee Graham. Graham
saw a Top Secret document written in the fall of
1952 for presentation to the "President elect"
(Eisenhower). It referred to MJ-12 and to an
ongoing study of crashed saucers by a small group
of high-level government and military people.
Although Graham was not allowed to copy the
document, he did write down the list of the 12
individuals said to be members of the group. Two
of them were Gen. Nathan Twining and Gen.
Hoyt Vandenburg. Another was Vannevar Bush.
That Bush should be listed is not surprising; he
was the chief science consultant to the President.

Further evidence that Bush was involved with
a special group studying UFOs comes from a
completely different source, a formerly Top
Secret memorandum released, perhaps by accident,
by the Canadian government in the late 1970s.
The memorandum, written by Wilbert B. Smith on
November 21, 1950, states that "flying saucers
exist" and that the subject is "the most highly
classified subject in the United States
Government, rating even higher than the H-
bomb." Although it does not name the special
group working on the UFO question, it says that a
"concentrated effort is being made by a small
group headed by Doctor Vannevar Bush."

We also have the testimony of the late Dr.
Robert Sarbacher, who apparently was the
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The memorandum listed about a dozen
characteristics of flying saucers including the ¯
"ability to quickly disappear by high speed or by
complete disintegration." It stated that the first
American sightings "were reported around the
middle of May" (1947) and that the last reported
sightings "took place in Toronto, Canada, 14
September." Then the memorandum offered an
opinion of the objects: "While there remains the
possibility of Russian manufacture.At is the

I enzel Admits He
Not Get tl[O [acts

that he
¯ ’,,1 evidence befo re

director,
the

considered opinion of some elements that the
object may in fact represent an interplanetary craft
of some kind" (my emphasis). The memorandum
provided a list of items of special interest
(information "requirements") that should be part
of the intelligence-collection effort.

So, if we assume that the Roswell incident did
provide hard evidence, we may conclude that the
cover-up really got under way when Twining
refused to mention in the letter to Schulgen that a
crash had occurred and that there was, in fact,
evidence of flying saucers.

A man with a need-to-know-.

If what we know of the Roswell incident is

correct--that it supplied physical, and perhaps

AF reports
as mirages

he found the AF
if they ~ave him

interview, Merci
charges of AF
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biological, proof that flyingsaucers are of
nohhuman origin--it is certain that government
and military officials at the top levels would have
been informed immediately. It would have been
evident to them that they were facing an
extremely important unknown situation beyond
their understanding and control. Until they could
understand it, they would want to keep the
physical proof secret.

To maintain the secrecy, a special group of
highly trustworthy individuals would have been
instructed to coordinate the analysis of the hard
evidence and to study its implications for science,
military technology and humanity in general.
Furthermore the special group would have been
instructed to set up a secrecy barrier that would
control access to the hard evidence and even
access to the fact of the existence of the evidence.
(Remember, this was only two years after the end
of the most technologically-oriented war ever
fought. People were used to extreme secrecy in
military matters.) Only those few people, who had
special qualifications and a need-to-know would
.be authorized by the secret group to have access
to the hard evidence.

One person with a definite need-to-know was
the head of the civilian agency that monitors
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of the UFOs. He started collecting UFO reports
early in July.

He contacted the FBI on July 10and asked for
help. He wanted the FBI to interview civilians
who reported flying saucers so that it could be
determined whether such reports were the result
of a desire to seek publicity or to advance some
political aim (such as subversive activities).
Schulgen told the FBI that the Air Force was
"utilizing all their scientists to ascertain whether
or not such a phenomenon could, in fact, occur."
He promised to supply the FBI with information
gathered by the Air Force in return for FBI help.
(Only because of Schulgen’s contact with the FBI
are we able to piece this early history together.
The Air Force Blue Book file has no information
on this phase.)

Over the months of July and August,
Schulgen’s intelligence officers succeeded in
accumulating a sizable body of testimonial
evidence despite the lack of "prompt and
demanding inquiries" from Schulgen’s superiors.
From this evidence Schulgen’s officers derived
some basic characteristics of the flying discs.
Schulgen then submitted this information to the
AMC for a technical evaluation. At the head of
the AMC was Lt. Gen. Twining, a man who
outranked Schulgen.

On September 23 Twining wrote Schulgen
indicating that he was responding to Schulgen’s
request. The letter expressed a judgment based on
the testimonial information Schulgen had
provided. Twining said the "interrogation report
data" were studied by personnel of several AMC
aircraft laboratories and these personnel, using
(only) Schulgen’s information, concluded that the
"phenomenon is something real and not visionary
or fictitious." (This statement is remarkably
similar to the conclusion formulated about two
months earlier by Schulgen’s officers that "this
flying saucer situation is not all imaginary or
seeing too much in some natural phenomenon.
Something is really flying around.")

Although Twining’s letter listed a number of
UFO characteristics and went on to recommend
that a special project be set up to study the
situation, it also stated that there was a "lack of
physical evidence in the shape of crash recovered
exhibits which would undeniably prove the
existence of these objects."

Critics of the Roswell incident have used

this statement to discredit the case. They contend
that Twining should have known about any

physical evidence if the material had been
shipped to Wright Field for analysis by AMC.
Therefore, they argue, since his letter said there
was no physical evidence, there must have been
none and the Roswell crash is fiction.

As I pointed out in "Revised UFO History,"
however, Twining would not inform Schulgen in a
letter classified at only the Secret collatoral
clearance level of the existence of hard evidence.
(A Secret collatoral clearance means that anyone
with the clearance level Secret can get a copy of
Twining’s letter to read. Since thousands of
persons had Secret clearances, it is certain that
Twining would not have put into the letter any
information that had to be restricted to only a
few individuals at the very top.) Schulgen had
asked Twining for an opinion based only on the
information that had been supplied by Schulgen.
Since Schulgen had not supplied any physical
evidence, the people who formulated the opinion
using only Schulgen’s information (various experts
at the AMC laboratories) concluded that there was
none.

If Twining did know of the Roswell crash, he
may well have decided (or been directed) to keep
this fact from the people who evaluated the
testimonial information supplied by Schulgen. In
other words, as I suggested in "Revised UFO
History," Twining may have covered up the fact
of the crash to minimize the number of people
who were aware of it. Only persons with a
specific need-to-know would have been informed
of the crash. The AMC experts did not have a
need-to-know because they correctly evaluated the
situation (flying saucers are real and a project
should be set up) using only Schulgen’s
testimonial evidence. Similarly, Schulgen did not
have a need-to-know for the hard evidence
because he was made aware of the correct
evaluation by Twining’s letter.

¯ This evaluation was sufficient to justify an
intelligence-collection effort by Sehulgen. During
October his officers formulated the collection
requirements and on October 30 he distributed a
memorandum entitled "Intelligence Requirements
on Flying Saucer Type Aircraft." The
memorandum stated that an "alleged ’Flying
Saucer’ type aircraft" had been sighted in "widely
scattered places, such as the United States,
Alaska, Canada, Hungary, the Island of Guam and
Japan" and had been reported by "many
competent observers including USAF rated
officers."
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investigative effort unrelated to Project Blue
Book.

As most IUR readers will know, the Roswell
incident of early July 1947 involved the’ retrieval
from the desert near Roswell, New Mexico, of a
large amount of strange material which was.
subsequently secretly shipped to Wright-Patterson
Air Force Base (called Wright Field in 1947) for
analysis. (See William L. Moore’s summary of the
Roswell events in July/August 1986 IUR, page 15.)

The fact of the shipment to Wright-Patterson
was confirmed in a document which was released
to me by the FBI in 1977 as a result of a Freedom
of Information Act request. Bill Moore and
Stanton Friedman. have located about half a dozen
living witnesses who actually handled the
material and 85 more individuals who were
directly or peripherally involved with the case.

The story put together from the witness
testimony is quite convincing. It appears that
some unusual material which fell on the Mac
Brazel ranch after an aerial object exploded was
retrieved by the Army Air Force and afterwards
the retrieval was covered up. A full account
appears in Moore’s "Crashed Saucers: Evidence in
Search of Proof" in the MUFON 1985 Symposium

Proceedings.
The discovery of the material by rancher

Brazel and the initial retrieval by Maj.
(subsequently Col.) Jesse Marcel (now deceased)
resulted in a press release which began: "The
many rumors regarding the flying disc became a
reality yesterday when the intelligence officer of
the 509th Bomb Group of the Eighth Air Force,
Roswell Army Field, was fortunate enough to
gain possession of a disc through the cooperation
of one of the local ranchers and the Sheriff’s
office of Chaves County" (San Francisco Chronicle,
July 9, 1947).

Within a day after this story was released by
the Roswell information Officer, the Army Air
Force, at the direction of Gen. Roger Ramey, held
a press conference and announced that the object
was a weather balloon and radar reflector,.a
ridiculous story when we consider that such
devices were common in the area and would have
been recognized as such by the intelligence
officer, Maj. Marcel. Nevertheless the Air Force
"explanation" was accepted by the press and the
public because no one outside the Air Force had
access to any of the material and thus could not
rebut the official statement and because the
firsthand civilian witnesses (Brazel in particular)
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were told not to discuss the incident. The Roswell
story slept until 1979 when Friedman and Moore
tracked down Marcel and obtained his firsthand .
testimony.

¯ ’ The "Revised .UFO History" proceeds from the
assumption that, as a. result of the Roswell
retrieval and numerous military sightings during
the 1947 flap, a very small group of top military
intelligence officers knew by the middle of July
1947 that flying discs were real and that,
moreover, they were not man-made. What they did
not know was the purpose or modus operandi of
the vehicles’ pilots.

If we assume that the Air Force’s top
intelligence officials knew as soon as the middle
of July 1947 that UFOs are real, we have an
explanation for a statement by an Air Force
inve.stigator, evidently not a member of the in-
group, who wrote this as part of an overview of
the flying-saucer situation sometime in late July
or early August 1947: "Lack of topside inquiries,
when compared tO the prompt and demanding
inquiries that have originated topside upon
former events, gives more than ordinary weight to
the possibility that this is a domestic project
about which the President, etc., know."

The speculation that the flying saucers were a
"domestic project" was incorrect but the
speculation that the "President, etc., know" may
well have been correct.

It seems certain that the top generals, such as
Lt. Gen. Nathan Twining, head of the Air
/vlateriel Command (AMC) where the Roswell
material was shipped, and Gen. Hoyt Vandenburg,
the Chief of Staff of the Air Force, would have
known that the flying.saucers were real and not
man-made. A few other very top government
scientists and Air Force officials would also have
known.. "

The cover-up begins?

Brig. Gen. George F. Schulgen was the
Assistant Chief of the Intelligence Requirements
Branch ..of the Army Air Corps intelligence
(AC/AS-2). His job was to formulate;:r.information-
collection requirements so that the A.!.r Force
intelligence agents would know what.-typ,es of
information to gather. Evidently, when Air Force
pilots began seeing UFOs, he.decided (or was

directed) to formulate requirements for an
intelligence-collection effort. To formulate those
requirements he had to know some characteristics
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What the admiral knew:
UFOs, M J-12 andRoscoe Hillenkoetter
by Bruce Maccabee
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Bruce Maccabee, Ph.D., an optical physicist who
works for the Navy, is chairman of the Fund for
UFO Research. He has written extensively on the
subject of U.S. government involvement in UFO
investigation.

A.dm. Roscoe Hillenkoetter was an exemplary
military officer. During World War II he was the
Officer in Charge of Intelligence on the staff of
the Commander in Chief, Pacific Ocean Area.
Later he was the commanding officer of the
U.S.S. Dixie and Director of Planning and Control
in the Bureau of Naval Personnel. He was
awarded the Legion of Merit for his work with
Personnel and, after the Japanese surrender
aboard the U.S.S. Missouri, he assumed command
of that ship. Later he was a naval attache in
France.

In the spring of 1947 he was called to special
duty in Washington, D.C., under the Secretary of
the Navy. On May 1, 1947, he was named Director
of the Central Intelligence Group which became
the Central Intelligence Agency as a result of a
presidential directive in September 1947..Thus
Hillenkoetter was the first CIA director, a
position he held until November 1950.
Subsequently he was assigned to duty in the Navy
Inspector General’s Office and became the
Inspector General in August 1956.

He retired from the Navy in June 1957 with
many medals and honors for his Navy work
including the Bronze Star Medal, the Purple
Heart, the World War II Victory Medal, the

Korean Service Medal, the United Nations Service
Medal and the Presidential Unit Citation Badge.

In short, Adm. Hillenkoetter was a capable,
respecte.d individual who could be trusted with
the deepest secrets of the United States
government. He could speak with authority on a
number of defense- and intelligence-related issues.
For that reason the credibility of UFO research
was given a boost when he joined the Board of
Governors of the National Investigations
Committee on Aerial Phenomena (NICAP) in 1957.

Three years later Hillenkoetter went even
further in his support of UFO research. In 1960

he made this public statement: "Unknown objects
are operating under intelligent control .... It is
imperative that we learn where UFOs come from
and what their purpose is." He went on to charge
the Air Force with hiding the facts by using
regulations to silence its personnel. He said it was
time to end official secrecy and to reveal "the
truth...in open Congressional hearings."

Why would a man of his stature and
authority, a Navy admiral and former CIA
director, join a UFO organization--reputed in
popular myt.hology to be the domain of kooks and
nuts? And why would he even go so far as to
support vocally one of NICAP’s goals, the release
of information withheld by the government? It
need hardly be said he was aware of the Air
Force’s repeated denials that it was keeping
secrets about flying saucers.

His UFO acti’vities seem to make no sense in
the context of the official UFO policy of the
government for which he had worked for many
years. Yet his actions do make sense if he sought
to persuade the public that UFOs are real--
without revealing government secrets about UFOs.

Is it conceivable, in other words, that, when
he said UFOs are real, he was expressing more
than just a personal opinion?

Recently-uncovered information about UFO-
related government and Air Force activities
suggests that Hillenkoetter may well have known,
not just speculated, that UFOs exist.

Rewriting history

Several years ago I wrote a paper entitled
"Revised UFO History" (available from the Fund
for UFO Research, Box 277, Mount Rainier,
Maryland 20712, for a $5.00 donation). In that
paper I argued that, based on what we now know
about the so-called Roswell incident, we must
take a whole new look at the early Air Force
investigation of flying-disc reports. I also said
that we must reconsider the possibility, the
subject of much discussion over the years, that
the U.S. government maintained a highly secret
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Truman¯ Libra,.Harry S.
I~ence, Missouri 64050

July 28, 1987

Mr. Stanton T. Friedman
P. O. Box 958
Houlton, Maine 04730

Dear Mr. Friedman:

Thank you for your letter.of July 18, 1987 with enclosures.
We have found 35 pages of material in our files relating to
the meeting between President Truman and President-Elect
Eisenhower on November 18, 1952 and appointments of Admiral
Roscoe Hillenkoetter with President’Truman on September 26,
1947, August 25, 1949 and June 26~ 1950.’’ These are the only
appointments we have on our appointments logs for Admiral

¯ Hillenkoetter between July i, 1947 and January 20, i953.
Daily sheets for these appointments are enclosed.

While Truman and Eisenhower discussed many subjects relating
to the transition to the Eisenhower administration, both
foreign policy and domestic policy, as. well~as White House
procedures and protocol,’ there is no reference to "MAJESTIC
12" or "MAJIC" or "Blue Team" i~ any of our records.

We have papers of Admiral Souers in our custody. A copy of’

the Souers finding aid is enclosed for your use. We are not
aware of any other body of Souers papers or of any biographies

..pf Admiral Souers. We suggest a research visit if you wish to .
examine any of these materials.

Your inquiry about a grant-in-aid will be answered under
separate cover.

BENEDICT K. ZOBRIST
Director

Encl~sures

A Presidential Library Administered by the NationalArchtves and Records Administration
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National Security Council, 1947~.19S0
White House Counsel, 1950-1953
FBI National Academy , graduation excercises,

September 29, 1950 "
Correspondence . Harry S. Truman, 1953-1972 .. "
Correspondence = gener~ 1953-1972 ’
National-Policy math:    ~ (Senate Subcommittee on)

correspondence con~.    .ng, 1959-1960

Certificates, diplomas.and other miscellaneous
material     "

Invitations and programs
Logs of Presidential trips (2 folders)
U. S. Naval Intelligence Service - "Manual of

Operational Intelligence,
" October 1943

News clipping file
Unification of the War and Navy Departments and

Postwar Organization for National Security (report),
October 22, 1945

Administration of National Security - Inquiry of the ¯
Subcommittee on National Security Staffing and.
Operations - U. S. Senate

Organizing for National Security - Inquiry of the
Subcommittee on National Policy Machinery -
Committee on Government Operations~ US Senate
(3 vols.). ¯ ¯
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Certificate from the State of Louisiana - 1922
"Churchill visits Nestminister-
Diploma from Lindenwood College
Scrapbooks
St. Louis Area Committee Dinner - Harry S. Truman

Library, Inc., February 2,. 1957
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1560 Forms of Address

Addressee
selectman

senate, state,
president of

senator, state

speaker, state
assembly, house of
delegates, or house

of representatives

supreme court, state.
associate justice

Form of Address.
m see ALDERMAN

The Honorable Amelia R. Smith
President of the Senate of the State (or

Commonwealth) of-

The Honor’able John R. Smith
The Senate of--

The Honorable Amelia R. Smith
Speaker of-

The Honorable John R. Smith
Associate Justice of the Supreme Court

ofm

Salutation

Madam: "
Dear Ms. Smith:
Dear Senator Smith:

Sir:       "
Dear Senator Smith:

Madam:
Dear Ms. Smith:

Sir:
Dear Justice Smith:

supreme court, state, The Honorable Amelia R. Smith Madam:
chief justice Chief Justice ~..the Supreme Court of-- Dear Madam Chief Justice:

/]tt~’(/a~-~ military ranks -- a typical but not ,~haustive list

~" [    vi~ admiral viation of branch oJ se "" ) ......... ~ .....

~ ~, r~radmiral . -

., ~~,ne asabove)    ~ "       Dear Airman Smith:

" . c&d t ~a~2~t~.~tt~yACademy.. ’ Dear Mr. Smith:

captain lair force, ~ull rank + fidl name + comma + abbre- ’    Dear Captain Smith:

colonel
lieutenant colonel

lair force, army. or
marine corps)

commander (coast guard
or navy)

c~rporal

first lieutenant
second lieutenant

(air force, army, or
marine corps)

..
general

lieutenant general
major general

brigadier general
{air force, army, or

marine corps)

lieutenant commander
lieutenant

lieutenant
ensign

(coast guard or navy)

major(air force, army.
or marine corps)

(same as above) Dear Colonel Smith:

(same as above) Dear Commander Smith:

(same as above)

(same as above)

(same as above)

Dear Corporal smith:

Dear Lieutenant Smith:

Sir: .
Dear General Smith:"

(same as above)

(same as above)

Dear Mr. Smith:

Dear Major Smith:



candidates are civilian technical intelligence engineers
Lawrence H. Truettner, A. B. Deyarmond, and Alfred
Loedding. (Truettner and Deyarmond were the authors of
the Project Sign report that contains many of these same
cases and sympathies; Loedding was a frequent Pentagon
liaison in 1947 and considered himself the "civilian project
leader" of Sign.

On the military side, the most probable defender was
the official project officer, Captain Robert Sneider, who
might have written the Estimate. But it is not impossible
that big wheels (or "gears" as colonels were then called--
the generals were the wheels) such as Howard McCoy or
William Clingerman, who would have had to sign off on
the Estimate, were also summoned. Not only was their
defense unsuccessful, but all of the above named persons
were reassigned shortly afterwards. So great was the
carnage that only the lowest grades in the project, civilian

George Towles and Lieutenant H. W. Smith, were left to
write the 1949 Project Grudge document about the same
cases. The significance of all this was obvious to Wright-
Patterson project personnel until Ed Ruppelt showed up,
with his honest naivet6, in 1951.

I find the lost words of Ed Ruppelt interesting because
they add an air of concreteness to the lost Estimate. Major
Donald Keyhoe knew of the document by hearsay and was
constantly hassled by government people telling him that
it was a myth, it never existed. The famous Armstrong
Circle Theatre fiasco of 1958, where Keyhoe was cut off
the air in mid-sentence, was partly due to the fact that he
was about to mention this document. Well, Keyhoe was
right. This all had happened. A letter from the Pentagon
admitted it much later. Now, thanks to Ed Ruppeh, we
have a pretty good idea of what was in it. ¯

ADMIRAL HILLENKOETTER: FROM

BELIEVER TO SKEPTIC
BY CHRISTOPHER D. ALLAN

V
ice-Adm. Roscoe H. Hillenkoetter had a dis-
tinguished career in the U.S. Navy, rising
through the ranks to become Pacific Com-
mander of Intelligence in World War I1.

Awarded the Legion of Merit for his work with personnel,
he retired with many medals and honors. He is best known
to ufology, however, for two contrasting reasons:

(1) Being appointed by President Truman as Director
of Central .Intelligence in Washington, D.C., on May I,
1947; this group became the Central Intelligence Agency
(C1A) later that year. He held this post until November
1950, when he returned to Naval duties.

(2) Being on the Board of Governors of the National
Investigations Committee on Aerial Phenomena (NICAP)

for a five-year period from 1957 to 1962. (He had retired
from the Navy in June 1957 and became head of a shipping
line in New York.)

Hillenkoetter had clearly developed an interest in
UFOs, though we do not know exactly when this interest
began. It is likely that his appointment to the NICAP board
resulted from an invitation from its director, retired Marine
Corps Maj. Donald E. Keyhoe, who had known Hillenkoetter
personally since they were students together at Annapolis.
Keyhoe undoubtedly deemed it a great boost to NICAP’s
prestige to have someone of Hillenkoetter’s standing on his

Christopher D. Allan, a frequent contributor to IUR, lives
in England.

governing body. This was ’especially so in the battles
between NICAP and the Air Force over UFO secrecy; these
battles were still to come.

In November 1957, following a big wave of UFO
sightings in the wake of the two Russian Sputniks,
Hillenkoetter spoke out on his belief in UFOs and his hopes

¯ of a quick resolution of the UFO problem using satellite and
space-exploration programs, then in their infancy. (The
first U.S. satellite was still two months in the future, and the
National Aeronautics and Space Administration [NASA]
was not inaugurated until October 1958.)

In early 1960 Hillenkoetter spoke out publicly again,
quoling a December 24, 1959, statement by the Air Force
Inspector General, Maj. Gen. Richard E. O’Keefe, who had
issued a regulation about UFO sightings, calling them
"serious business." As reported in the New York Times of
February 28, Hillenkoetter declared that "it is time for the
truth to be brought out in open Congressional hearings." He
added, "Behind the scenes high-ranking Air Force officers
are soberly concerned about the UFOs, but through official
secrecy and ridicule, many citizens are led to believe the
unknown flying objects are nonsense."

These public statements have been quoted before but
are worth recalling. Later Hillenkoetter’s name appeared in
the Congressional Record when the Hon. Leonard G. Wolf
spoke in the House of Representatives (August 31, 1960) on
a recent report submitted to Congress by NICAP, The
NICAP Report on SecreO, Dangers. Hillenkoetter, as a
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NICAP board member, had endorsed this 1 I-page report;
which provided the impetus for Keyhoe’s long-hoped-for
Congressional hearings, in which the "truth" about UFOs,
coupled with the Air Force’s long suppression of this truth,
would emerge. The battle for these Congressional hearings
had occupied NICAP, involving a lot of administrative
work and using up much of its funding, for at least three
years. It now looked as if it might at least come to fruition.

Keyhoe writes in his Aliens from Space (1973) that he
and NICAP seemed in fact to be involved, in two battles
regarding UFO secrecy: one with the Air Force, the other
with the CIA. During the 1960s Keyhoe gradually became
convinced that the CIA was the real culprit behind the
secrecy (see chapters five and six). But the public battles
were entirely between NICAP and the Air Force.

Hillenkoetter’s position vis-a-vis UFOs seems clear
enough, and there can be no doubt of his commitment to
getting the Air Force to be more open. Keyhoe claims that
"the CIA takeover of the AF investigation occurred in
1953"--an obvious reference to the Robertson Panel---but
that Hillenkoetter was not involved since this was after his
term as CIA director. Nonetheless Hillenkoetter did say
that "the CIA had been keeping a close watch on the UFO
problem" since ! 948 (Aliens from Space, chapter five).

SECOND THOUGHTS

In 1961 a privately published book, The Challenge of
Unidentified Flying Objects, by N1CAP board member
Charles A. Maney and NICAP secretary Richard Hall,
appeared. The first page contains a printed statement by
several board members to the effect that "the unknown
devices reported by reliable observers are intelligently
controlled machines from outer space." Curiously,
Hillenkoetter’s name is absent from this list.

When I asked Hall about this omission several years
ago, he said the book was produced by a small publisher,
and the omission may have been due to a printing error.
Otherwise he could offer no explanation. I then looked at
NICAP’s June 1960 Confidential Report to Congress which
he had sent me, in the section entitled "Plan to Reduce
Danger." Several board members are listed as supporters of
the "interplanetary machine" hypothesis, but again
Hillenkoetter is not among them. Yet his public statements
seemed to support the spaceship answer. Why the strange
omission? Was Hillenkoetter having second thoughts?

In his book Keyhoe relates how, in the run up to hear-
ings in Congress, he was relying heavily on Hillenkoetter’s
support and the big influence he would have in backing
NICAP’s effort to force the Air Force to open its files. But
suddenly, out of the blue in early 1962, came a short letter
from Hillenkoetter. The text, quoted by Keyhoe in Aliens,
reads:

Dear Don:
In my opinion, NICAP’s investigation has gone as far as

possible. I know the UFOs are not US or Soviet devices.
All we can do now is wait for some action by the UFOs.

The Air Force cannot do any more under the c.ircum-
stances. It has been a difficult assignment for them, and I
believe we should not continue to criticize their investiga-
tions.

I am resigning as a member of the NICAP Board of
Governors.

Keyhoe was stunned and naturally put Hillenkoetter’s
action down to pressure from above: "persuasion at a very
high level," as he put it. Even in retirement it seemed
Hillenkoetter was not immune to these mysterious
"persuaders." Despite this Keyhoe did admit that "the cause
of the admiral’s action was still a mystery." Never once did
he hint that Hillenkoetter resigned through disenchantment
with NICAP. After this Hillenkoetter dropped out of ufology
and made no more public statements.

The story now takes a different turn. In late 1964
Harvard University astronomer and militant UFO debunker
Donald H. Menzel told Boston radio station WEEI that
Hillenkoetter had repudiated his belief in UFOs and had
fully accepted all of Menzel’s negative explanations as
expounded in The Worm of Flying Saucers ( 1963, with Lyle
G. Boyd).

This was too much for Keyhoe to stomach, and he
asked NICAP members to be on the lookout for further
Menzel statements in this vein. Meanwhile Keyhoe wrote
to Hillenkoetter seeking clarification. A few months later,
in a Chicago broadcast, Menzel repeated his claim in a
discussion with a NICAP member.

By now Keyhoe was so incensed at Menzel’s apparent
attempt to discredit NICAP that he decided to publish
Hillenkoetter’s earlier response to his letter. Keyhoe as-
sured readers that "when [Hillenkoetter] left the Board
there was no ill feeling." Hillenkoetter’s response, dated
January 8, 1965, was published in the.August/September
1965 issue of NICAP’s U.F.O. Investigator:

Dear Don:
1 apologize for the delay in answering your letter of

December 13th but for part of the time over the holidays 1
was up in Massachusetts.

I think yoi~ were misinformed about some of the things
you mention. First, as far as I can remember, 1 never talked
to Major Hart nor, also as far as 1 remember, I have never
met himand would not know him if he walked in the do’or.

I saw Dr. Menzel at a dinner in December but other than
saying "Good Evening--Merry Christmas" there was no
conversation and I have never carried on any conversation
with Menzel about NICAP or UFO. He did send me a copy
of his book for which I thanked him but took no position on
the statements he made.

Please take my apologies for being so long in answering
your letter and with best personal wishes to you, believe
me, as ever

IUR ¯ MARCH/APRIL 1995
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Sincerely,
Roscoe

Keyhoe followed this by saying of Menzel: "We could
only assume that he had confused Hillenkoetter with some-
one else." A displeased Menzel wrote to Keyhoe on No-
vember 10, 1965:

Dear Major Keyhoe:
In the UFO Investigator for August-September, 1965,

you have published a statement under the heading "ADM.
HILLENKOE’I"FER DENIES MENZEL CLAIM." You
question the validity of statements 1 have made in various
radio broadcasts, in reply to assertions by NICAP members
concerning Admiral Hillenkoetter’s views on UFOs and
NICAP. You suggest that I might have "confused
Hillenkoetter with someone else."

In view of your stated desire "to get the facts on record,"
I enclose herewith the copy of Admiral Hillenkoetter’s
letter to me, dated September 19, 1963. I fear that the
Admiral was guilty of the absent-mindedness you attrib-
uted to me.

Your statement that when the Admiral "left the Board,
there was no ill feeling, as Dr. Menzel hasimplied," stands
at variance with the third paragraph of the Admiral’s letter
to me. Further, 1 find it hard to accept your statement that
"the reference to Major Hart was not concerned with
Menzel,°" since it was Major Carl R. Hart, Project Blue
Book Information Officer, United States Air Force, who
wrote a glowing tribute to The World of Flying Saucers,
written by myself and Mrs. [sic] Lyle Boyd and published by
Doubleday.

Sincerely yours,
Donald H. Menzel

Dear Dr. Menzel:
Please accept my deepest apologies for the delay in

answering your letter of 2 August, as well as the
acknowledgement of the-receipt of your book. I was away
for some time during the summer and the Navy Depart-
ment forwarded your letter to my home where I was a long
time receiving it.

Thank you very much for your book. To my mind, it was
very well done and I enjoyed it and found it of great
interest. I should say that you have effectively put to rest
all surmises about flying saucers being from "outer space."
You have done a thorough and praiseworthy job.

As 1 told you at the last "Ends of the Earth," I resigned
from NICAP about 20 months ago feeling that it had
degenerated from an organization honestly trying io find
out something definite about possible unknowns, into a
body bickering about personalities. The Air Force, too,
could have helped by not being so secretive.

At all events, you have done a fine job and I am very
grateful you were so kind as to send me your book.

Again, with thanks and the hope of seeing you at the

IUR ¯

next "Ends of the Earth," please believe me
Most Cordially,
R. H. Hillenkoetter

In short, by 1963 Hillenkoetter had become a virtual
skeptic. Menzel’s book had certainly caused him to have
serious doubts about UFOs. Even if he was at one time a
believer, he still seemed to stop short of actually endorsing
the extraterrestrial hypothesis (ETH), at least in public.
However, since he never pronounced on UFOs after 1963,
we do not know if he became a complete skeptic.

But his reasons for leaving NICAP are clear. After five
years he was, quite simply, fed up with the organization and
wanted out. These letters lay to rest any notion that
Hillenkoetter and Menzel had been, since 1947, colleagues
on some supersecret cover-up committee such as Majestic-
12, as alleged in Bruce Maccabee’s "What the Admiral
Knew" (November/December 1986 IUR) and in numerous
papers by Stanton T. Friedman. Hillenkoetter and Menzel
were obviously not even on first-name terms with each
other. They were barely better than casual acquaintances.

Almost certainly Vice-Adm. Hillenkoetter joined
NICAP because he was a long-standing personal friend of
Keyhoe. His decision had nothing whatever to do with
either his former CIA connections or some top-secret
knowledge of UFO reality. He left NICAP five years later
after growing disillusioned with its internal conflicts. No
evidence of any ulterior motive exists. ¯

CLARIFICATION

by Donald R. Schmitt

Recently several parties have raised questions concern-
ing my educational background and place of
employment. Although these matters should not, and do
not, have any bearing on the Roswell investigation that
Kevin Randle and I have conducted, I thought it best to
offer these clarifying comments.

I have been an employee of the U.S. Postal Service
since 1974. I worked part-time until 1983, when 1
became a full-time rural letter carrier. During all this
period, I have been a freelance commercial artist. I will
soon receive a bachelor’s degree from Concordia Col-
lege with a major in Liberal Arts, and I’ve been accepted
into a newly-established graduate program in criminal
justice studies at Concordia.

I would like to offer my sincerest apologies for any
false or misleading statements I made about my back-
ground. I regret any misunderstandings that may have
sprung from this.

As a consequence, I have resigned, effective April
13, 1995, as Director of Special Investigations of the
C~nter for UFO Studies. I will continue, with the
support of my colleagues, as a CUFOS board member.
I want to thank all those who have offered their support
and friendship to me during the past few months.

MARCH/APRIL 1995
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CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY

WASHINGTON. O. Co

OFFICI=’ OF" THt=" DIR~’CTOR

6 October 1950

The President
The White House
%Tashington,. D. C.

dear lit. President:

I v~lsh to thank .you for acceding to ~y request
to return to active sea duty v~ith the Navy and to inform
you tlmt on tomorrow, 7 October 1950, I shall turn over
the duties of Director of Central Intelligence to
General ~7. B. Smith, whomyou have designated as ~y
successor, ~

;,~.:,r I also take this opportunity to express
~ sincere appreciation and gratitude for the under-
.standing, consideration, and support you have always so
generously and so cheerfully given me during the time I
vms Director of Central Intelligence.

With the very best of personal regards, please
. .believe n~,

~{ost respectfully,

R. H. Hillenkoetter
Rear Admiral, USN

Director. of Central Intelligence
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~ar Admiral Hillenkoetter:

~- c~mot allow ~-o~ to return t~ ~a dut~

aFpreciation of ~e sple~ ~e~ce
rendered as. Di~c~r of Cen~

~en~ ~to

~th ~e na~o~l ~e~ty, is ,~ of ~eat
pralse.

Very sincere~ yours,

¯ asaAngwon, D.C.    -     " "*
elc
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Personal attributes of Hillenkoetter which might be mentioned

if appropriate:

I. Extreme modesty and self-effaci~g devotion to dugj,

2. Friendliness and good will in his dealings with

other members of the team which he was a member,

3. Patience and forebearance in the face of difficult

but unavoidable problems arising from his task of

coordinating the national intelligence effort.
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CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE¯ AGENCY

WASHINGTON .25, D. C,

SUBJECT:     Chincse }iationali~c attacks .on. US shipping

1.    ’i~e following s~-:t,~e.ry of intelligeuce background
respect be the ruc~:~rb ~helling of th~ US-flag I~LkqI:G~e~{OT; is ~ub-
mibtcd iu bhc belief that it ¥;ili ’be of ~terest to you.-

4.    Con~:m~.iut min~ s.,.~eo~i~.~.g oporation~, c~-riud out in spite
of considerable danger of int~rfer=.uce fro,~ i~e Nabion~list l,[ap-#,
would be largely motivated by-a desire to encourage .furth&r
"blockade-runni~g". The cargoes carried.by Isbrandbsen ace ob-
vio~,~!y of h:~porb~cs to the Co:~nunists~ as indicated¯ by the ex-
orbitant P~’eight rates which they are reported to .be paying for
this h"~ffic. ’l~e Co,~mnists ere even rumored to be giving



HARRY S TRUMAN LIBRARY

President’s Secretary’s File

Isbraa-~dtscn additional financial prOtection for the unusual risks
involved. Im addi-~ional incentive for.prompt el~[ination of the
mine field ~;ould be the danger that the si~ing of a vessel in
th~ Y~gtze ~h~el might ~ede access ~o the Co~:~ists, major
port i’or ~u extended period.

5. With respect to the actual shelling of ~he FLYING
the Nationalists haw e~lained that the ac~ion was t~ken to pro-
vent ~h~ vessel froL~ suffe~’ing c~rtain dest~ction by mines. The
real motive, of course, was ~heir determination to prolon~ the
isol~tion of Shanghai by sea. l~~ey appear to be still desirous
of avoidin~ the sinking of a US vessel. The length of the attack
~d its i~creased severity, however,, show that th~ Nationalists
ere somcwh~t loss ~concerned about infl~ing US. feelings th~ they
weze bcfoze the recent US policy am~o~cement ~th respect to

~.    iq~e assistanc~ rendered the FLYING AI~O~ by the British, ~ ,~
sloop ~¢K S%V~’~ ~i~ th~ ~u~ion o~ ~tur~ Bri~i=~ poli=~
r~sp~ct to r~.... ~ .l’~o~l~-c naV~l operations follo~,~ing th~ withdrawal
of Dz-itish recognition of the -~a’"

~’ ~onalx~ts. This question
clouded by intrica~be legal complications. Although the British
¯ ncerprota-c~on of the status of Hutionalist vessels is no~’~ un-
c(~’tain, Britain’s ~<~:cognition of the

’ "    Gove~,~cno has not~:~cu the ~o~l I.;a~sj,’s po!ic~, o£ ............ "
B~’itish mcrch&nbmcn up to the three-mile limit. In the event that
a ~ribish-rl~g vess~:l is hc.lt~a inside that zone by the N~tion~.lists
without the use o~ L[orec, it is not ~,ot clcam ~~hat ruction would be
t~hcn by the BL’itish nav~l escort. In }iew of the UK’s ~eeo~nition
of (.he Co~m~mis~s~ ho,~ever~ ~nd its dete~in~tion to
~m~ ~a~r~ ms un inor~ased possibility that the N~tion~lists will
have ~o use force a~inst ~ritish mcrch~t~en to maintain the bloek-
ade~ in which c~se the Sri%ish Nav~ would metali~te ~de~ stranding
A&~ir~lty orders.

?.    In i~he 0S ~-i~w, the Nationalist Navy is an agency of a
friendly gover~.,~cnt as long as recognition continues to be
cxtendod. An~ British action against the Nationalist Na~j, there-
fore, mi.~ht be carried out ~d~r circ~st~ces in ~ich the US and
UX would have opposing views. In any case, the UK’s policy, toward
the blockade will probabl~ become e~dcnt upon the scheduled

arrival at the Y~gtze es~ua~ on II J~uar~ of the first British-
~lag me~’ch~’~t vessel to ~c~pz to reach Shemghai since reoogmition
of the N~tionalists was ~’~ithdr~.

DECLASSIFIED
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8.    In.the absence o£ positiveBritish action, it is pos-
sible ~nat the c~±ecc’~vc blockade of" Co.~,mlunist ports from Sh~ghai
south may continue fez some ~ae. ’~e ha~onalists clah~ to have
a stock of about gO0 mines in process o~’ overhaul.

sources believe, ~ , ~lurb~crmore, ~nr~ the Nationalists have
facturcd some minos on ~a~,an. On ~c other h~d, US naval authori-
tics in S]~:.u~ghai have cxz)r~sed s<~rious doubt as to the cff’icicncy
of eli:her the dc~;i~T~ or ~ luccm~n~ of Hationalist mines ~d as to
their ability: to ~ix th~ mines against the Strong~ currents in the
ar~a. In ~cy event, it is quit~ po~o_Lle that the Nationalist

~a~j ~:~ay not be rcqui~-ed to expend large quantities ozTM ei ~hcr mines
o~" ~,~:~ition for the prcs~nt, bec~use the e~ective , ~ ¯

s~c!l~ngthe ~’tYi].~G ~OJ will co~r~inue to discourase other ship operato~-s,
in the absence oz~ naval p~’o�~ction, fro~,~ engaging in the Chinese

mainl~:.nd tra~fic, and may further increase insurance r~.tes to the
point ~Therc such opcc~tions ~-~ prohibitive.

R. H. HILLEr~KOETTER
REAR AD~:IRAL. USN

DIRECTOR .OF CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE

DECLASSIFIED
I~. O. 116.~2. Scc. 3(.~.) ~nd .~;(D) or

- 3-
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CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY
WASHINGTON 25, D. C.

0-8621

SUB3~T: Maintenance of Political Morale and Discipline in the
Soviet Armed Forces

Political morale and discipline are maintained in the Soviet
Armed Forces by the assigmment of Comm~mist Party representatives
as deputy commanders in all echelons of the services. These politi-
cal representatives are responsible to the F~in Political D~ectorate
of the Armed Forces and are charged with: (I) ~isciplinary control
over Co~xnist Party members in the Armed Forces; (2) political~
education and surveillance of other military personnel; and (3) morale
activities and propaganda, They work closely with I.~}B~ informers in

the Armed Forces, who ms.lntain their own cha~nels of com~u~utcatlon
entirely independent of nor~l military channels. In addition to
exercising direct control through these official representatives, the
Co.~m~nist Party has an indirect influence on political morBle end
discipline because ~ members of the Armed Forces are also Par~y

R. H. HI}_LEI~KOEII’ER
REAR ACJI~I~L,

EIRECTOR OF C:-NTRAL INT~LL:C!:!~.’C

DECLASSIFIED
Sec. 3(E)
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#3E227

CENTRAL INTELLIGENCEAGENCY

WASHINGTON 25, D. C...

28 Feb~.r~ ’1950

The Joint Atomic Energy Intelligence . Committee,
composed of representatives of State, Ar~, Navy,
Air Force, the Atomic Energy Commission, and tb~
Central Intelligence Agency, after considering cer,
tain information which, has become available, is of
the opinion that this information should be inter-

preted as an indication that a Soviet bomb test may
take place in Central Asia as early as March 1950.
All Intellizence Agencies have been alerted to this
fact.

¯ HILLENKOETTE~
Rear Admiral, USN
Director of Central

Intelligence
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CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY
WASHINGTON 25, D. C,

#39682

COXTROL

li S. OFFiCiALS OILY

17 April 1950

M/MORANDUM

SUBJECT: Greek Political Crisis

I. On the evening of 14 April 1950, Sophocles Venizelos, leader
of the Greek Liberal Party who submitted his resignation as Premier
of the Greek Government earlier in the day, arranged for a conference
between Colonel Metaxas, aide-de-camp and political adviser to King
Paul, and a CIA officer in Athens.

2. In the course of a five-hour talk at the palace Colonel
Metaxas discussed the Greek political situation at length and stated
that King Paul was very muchalarmedbyit. He said that King Paul
did not feel that he could trust a government headed by General
Plastiras and believed there would be clashes with him.

3. According to Colonel Metaxas, the palace holds the American
Embassy directly responsible for the present situation. The palace
now has no contact with the Embassy.

4. Colonel Metaxas informed the CIA officer that King Paul is
most e~xlous to co~unicatc directlyw£th President Truman either by
persorml letter or, preferabl~, through a personal envoy whom the
King would send immediately to explain the King,s point of view to
the President. Colonel Metaxas stated that King Paul would prefer
that the President make a confidential request for the dispatch of such
an envoy.

5. In.accordance with Metaxas, urgent request that no report be
made locally of this conversation, the only. dissemination of this
report is to the White IIouse and the Secretary of State.

Rear Admiral, USN
Director of Central InteLligence

GOltTROL

U.S. OFFICIALS
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CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY
" WASHINGTON 25, D. C,

1 JUL1950

Soviet Capabilities ~.Jith [[espect to 3apart in the Light
of US Coi~mitment in Korea

i. The USSR has the r~ilitary capability of mounting, transporting,
and logistically Supporting a ~-~aterborne attack on Japan x~ith ten to.
eleven divisions (ll,O00 men per division-): There is in the Far Zast
a sufficient bomber force for large-scale air attack on Japan. It
is tu~certain, ho~.~ever, ~.#hether the stu~face vessels of the Soviet
naval forces in the Far East can give adequate naval support for an
~phibiot{s operation against Japan.

2. Uo effort has been made to estir, zte Soviet intentions re~,:arding
the ~nner or extent of the employment of those capabilities nor has
consideration been given to thee requirements of such other Soviet
operations as ~.:;ht accoml~ny an assault against Japan. 1~cither bns
cons±d,::ration been ~,ivon to the extent and effectiveness of probable

¯ ~JS cou~ateraction.                                --               ., . ".

DISCUSSION

i. Soviet Forces in the Far East.

Ground Forces.

~e Soviet ground forces in the Far East total 468,000 men,
organized in 32 divisions. In addition, there are about 57,000 IED
troops, organized along m~litary lines. The main troop concentrations
(16 to 18 divisions) are near ports in the following areas: (1)
Vladivostok, (2) Port Arthur-Dairen, (3) Salahalin, (4) the Kuriles,
and (5) ~’.~mhatka-Ohu]~otski Peninsulas. The remaining 12 to 15
divisions are disposed along the Trans-Siberian railroad in gan-ison
al’e~S.
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b. Air Forces.

The Soviets are estimated to have disposed in the Far East
a total of 5,300 aircraft, assigned to the 9th, lOth, and 12th tactical
air armies located in the Far East, I.~rit~:~, and Transbai1~al 1-~litary
Divisions~ the 3rd long-range air army located at Khabarovsk; and
the 5th and 7th Pacific Fleet located in the Far East and l.iritime
l.~’s. A brealcdo~m of the Soviet air order of battle in the Far East
is as follows:

Fighter 2,000
Attack 600
Light Bomber 1,400
Bomber (LRAF) 700
Transport 400
¯ qeco~-~lais sance 200

Total 5,300

Although~ the 3rd lor~ range air army contains an esti~nted
1,400 bomber aircraft, no Soviet TU-4’s (Soviet B-29’s) have been re-
ported operational in any of the reg~Aents. It is possible, however,
that some l~0rtion of the total number of TU-4’s estimated to be
currently operational in the USSR L%%y now be in the Far East. It is
also possible ¯ ~ ~"tn~.. all ~-4’s available in the USSR could be moved on
short notice to bases in the Far East.

lhe Soviet Air Forces have a variety of bomber-type aircraft
in the Far East which are currently operational. The most current
air order of battle lists an est~mted 944 light bombers assigned to
units in the Far .East, not including, the eighteen regiments of the
third long-range air army. It is readily seen therefore, that there

¯ e~/st in the Far East sufficient bomber aircraft of the Soviet Air
Forces to provide the capability for air attack against Japan on a
large scale.

c. ~,Javal Forces.

Soviet }laval forces in the Far East are organized into t~.:o
fleets, the 5th based at Vladivostok and the 7th based at Sovetskaya
Gavan. I[o information concerning the assignment of vessels to fleets
in this area has ~. been confi~ned.
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The ships assigned to the Far East Fleet are as follows:

IIeavy Cruiser (CA)
Light Cruiser (CL)
Destroyer     (DD)
Old Destroyer (ODD)
Corvette (DC)
Destroyer Escort (DE)
Suhi~.rine     (SS)
l-~nor Con~.tant Vessels
i.laval Auxilia.rie s

2. ~istica! C~abilities.

Number

2
1

15
2

i0
2

79
453
29

a. C_a1>abilities for I-;aterborne Transport.

’lhe USSR has sufficient logistical capabilities to initiate
a~.~d support a ~.~atcrborne attack on Jalmn with l0 to ll divisions of
l[,0J0 men per division, including equipment and supplies." ’fne major
Soviet-controlled ports in !’brth Korea, the l,~ritime Province, and
Saldaalin Imve a �or~:bincd daily loading capacity of at least 55;000
long tons. The ports of I.hnchuria and North China haveah appro:dmmtely
equal capacity. This is ~.nr"e~ tlmn reottired to support a force of lO
to 14 divisions.~                       "

¯ Japanese ports on the island of Honshu facing the Sea of
Japan are of limited capacity, totalling_, approximately .12,000 tons
per day. This is imtdequate for the initial ¯attack by lO to ll
divisions and would force theutilization .of ports on Holmido and
the Pacific Coast of Honshu, both of which hage ample capacity.

b. Caoabilities for Land ’ih:anspp.~r~t. ~/o4-e

The present stockpile of r~zteriel in the Soviet Far ~st is
esti:~kated to be sufficient for the initial attack, and the capacity
of the Tr.’-’ns-Saber~an railroad, together with this stockpile, is
sufficient to ~mintain an operation of .the rmgnltude previously noted.

c. Ca_9.pabilities for A~r %>ans~ort.

The total Soviet airlift capacity immediately available is
sufficient to move three airborne brigades using 1,000 LI-2 transoort
planes. Possibly a ~mxi:.~m of five airborne brigades, if l~anned’in
advance, could be moved by means of 1,£00 transport planes.
would bc possible without gliders but if gliders (K-20) were used, the
figures ~.:omld be increased by ~:~one airborne brigade in each case. Uith-
out gliders ~he Combat radius is 525 nautical miles...-- with gliders it
~.~ould be ~00 nautical miles. Each airborne brigade, consists of ~,200
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men with all equipment except light tanks. There are believed to
be 1,O00 transport planes in reserve in the USSR for which cre~.~s
~.:ottld b~ave to be assembled and conditioning undertaken.
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OCT 1947

M~MORA~.~UM FOR THE EXECUTIVE SECRETARY OF T~
NATIOnaL SECURITY COUNCIL

Subject:     NationAl SecurityAct of 1947

Enclosure: (A) Copy of memorandum from the Acting Secretary
of State to the Director of Central InteL1_i-
gence, dated September 23, 1947, subject above

(B) Copy of memorandum from the Director of Central
Intelligence to the members of the NIA, dated
l̄l September 1947, subject above

i. The Director of Central Intelligence encloses for the
information of the Executive Secretary of the National Security
Council a copy of the reply by the Acting Secretary of State~
in his capacity as the State Department member of the former
National Intelligence Authority, to the Director of Central
Intelligence on the subject of the latter, s memorandum to the
National Intelligence Authority dated ll September 1947, copy
of which is also attached.

2o Such other replies as may be received to this mamo-
~randum-of ll September 19;4? ; will. also be supplied to the
Executive Secretary of the Na~tional Security Council for his
information.

Rear Admiral, USN
Director of Central I~tellAgence

t,’Q CHANGE IN CLASS. ~
~ DECLASS~’iED
CLASS. CM~G~DTO: TS 8 C
NE~ EEViEW D.z.IE:
AUTH: MR 70-2
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2, The Di~rector of the Central Intelligence Group sat as a
mon-voting member of the National InteLligence Authority~ and, ~hile
I believe it presumptuous and avA~ard on my part to euggest that he
so sit with the National Security Councils still it ~ould be of

.utmost assistance if he could attend all meetings .of the National
Security Council in some capacity, either as observer, counsel or
advisor,~ in order to keep informed of ~hat the thoughts of the

~ National Security Council may be. In addition, by being present~
¯ ~ ~. the Director of the Central Intelligence Agency would also be

available for such direct questions as may be propounded.

3. If you ~ill indicate your approval or disapproval of the
suggestions and recommendations aboves I ~hall go ahead and have
formal statements prepared to be furnished to the National Security
Council at its first meeting.

Rear Admirals USN
Director of Central Intelligence
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CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE GROUP
2430 E STREE’r NW.

WASHINGTON 25, D. C.

15 OCT 1947

NATIONAL SECURITY COJNCIL

Subject:     National Security Act of 1947

Reference: (a) Memorandum from the Director of Central Tntelll--
gence to the Executive Secretary of the National
Security Council, dated 2 October 1947, subject
above

Enclosure (A). Copy of a memorandum from the Secretary of t~eArmy.
to the Director of Central lutelligence, dated
6 October 1947, subject above

i. The Director of Central Intelligence .encloses for the informa-
tion o£ the Executive Secretary of the National Security Council a copy
of the reply by the Secretary of the Arm~ (as successor to the Nat Depart-

merit member of the National Intelligence Authority) to the Director of
Central Intelligence on the Subject of the latter.s memorandum to the
National. Intelligence Authority, dated 11 September 1947, copy of which
~s attached to the above reference.

2. The Director of CentraS. Intelligence takes tZ~s opportunity
also to inform the Execative Secretary of the Natior~Ll Security Council.
that he has received statements of approv~Lwithout change f-~om [orm.er
S~cr,~az~of~hc Na~yFo~ostal~d f~om Admiral Leahyin his capacity
of personal, representative of the President on the National Intelligence
Authority. These th-s complete.the replies.

Rear Admiral~ USN
Director of Central Intelligence

CLAC3. C;".A;~GE,3TO: TS S C

AUTH: ~.9 70-2                 .



HARRY S TRUMAN LIBRARY

Papers of Harry S Truman
Records of the:
National Security Council

COPY

DEPART~T OF THE AP~Y
Washington

MKMORAhq~UM FOR THE IKRECTCR OF CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE

SUBJECT: National Security Act of 1947     ~ A ." ~

i. ~ith reference to your memorandum, subject as above, dated
11 September 1947, it is noted that all addressees are members of
th@~Natlonal InteLligence Authority. The following comments are
equally applicable, ~hether expressed through represe~tation on the
National Intelligence Authority or the National Security Council.

2. I concur that all directives of the National Intelligence
Authority and the Central Intelligence Group should be continued
in full force and effect until the National Security Council has

had an opportunity to study them.

3,, I further concur that the Director of Central Intelligence
be directed to mxb~J.t to the National Security Council hi~ proposa~
as to the actions which ma> be necessary to bring former directives
of <~e Nacional Intelllgence Authority into agreement with the Na-
tional Security Act of 1947.

4. I would have no objection to the Director of Central Intel-
ligence attending those meetings of the Nationai Securitycouncil
¯ hich are of interest to the Central Intelligence Agency but of
course this is a matter for decision by the Chairman of the Council.

5. The establishment by the National Security Council of a
subcommittee to furnish active direction to the Central IntelLigence
Agency is incompatible with my conception of the functioning of the
Council, I visualize ’ that the Council ~ill act as any entity on
matters within its cognizance, and that the Director of C~ntral In-
telligence may expect to receive bro~i directives from the Council~

-/s/ Kenneth C. Royall

m cmsu z (A)

Kenneth C. Royall
Secretary of the Arm~

COI FIDENTIAL


